College of Saint Benedict and Saint John's University

Digital Commons@CSB/SJU

Honors Theses, 1963-2015 Honors Program

1997

An Abstract of "International Accounting Disclosure Standards"

Shelley Loberg
College of Saint Benedict/Saint John's University

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.csbsju.edu/honors_theses

b Part of the Accounting Commons

Recommended Citation

Loberg, Shelley, "An Abstract of "International Accounting Disclosure Standards™ (1997). Honors Theses,
1963-2015. 627.

https://digitalcommons.csbsju.edu/honors_theses/627

Available by permission of the author. Reproduction or retransmission of this material in any form is prohibited
without expressed written permission of the author.


https://digitalcommons.csbsju.edu/
https://digitalcommons.csbsju.edu/honors_theses
https://digitalcommons.csbsju.edu/honors
https://digitalcommons.csbsju.edu/honors_theses?utm_source=digitalcommons.csbsju.edu%2Fhonors_theses%2F627&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
http://network.bepress.com/hgg/discipline/625?utm_source=digitalcommons.csbsju.edu%2Fhonors_theses%2F627&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages
https://digitalcommons.csbsju.edu/honors_theses/627?utm_source=digitalcommons.csbsju.edu%2Fhonors_theses%2F627&utm_medium=PDF&utm_campaign=PDFCoverPages

INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING DISCLOSURE STANDARDS
A THESIS
The Honors Program
College of St. Benedict/St. John’s University
In Partial Fulfillment
of the Requirements for the Distinction “All College Honors”
and the Degree Bachelor of Arts
In the Department of Accounting
by
Shelley A. Loberg

May 1, 1997



Approval Page for Shelley Loberg

International Accounting Disclosure Standards

Approved by:

&m& & tf%{uxqgm

Lucy Larson
Associate Professor of Accounting

e (b

Xéan Ochu
Associate Professor of Accounting

oSl R

Charles Rambeck
Associate Professor of Economics

pora (0, € )7/ bt e

/Jgfnes O’Meara
“~—~Chair, Department of Accounting

<7 77/4%4&@

Margaret dook
Director, Hono esis Program

Cloe gy —

Anthony Cunnm am
Director, Hono Progr



Table of Contents

Page Number

INEEOGUCEION.......ecevveceeeetieiceeiee e et e et e e te b e et e e s esh e bne st esabeenate st esaneenanseeas 3

Need for Standardized Requirement..........coccoeieinciiiinniesmnec e 5

Disclosure of Accounting POlICIES. ......ovvevveivirieiiriennnneeiee e niccenrecee e 9

Accounting for CONLMZENCIES. ....covirerririiriiieiiaie e seeeae e s 13
Accounting for GOOAWill.........oooiiiieiiieiiicii e 16
CONCIUSION. 1..teeeeeeiieeeee st eerbesstsieans e ir s et e eaaesabeanne st e ssaeenseen e e e see s sreeaneessnesesneonenen 19
Appendix A - International Accounting Standards Committee Board.............. 24
Appendix B - Goodwill Charts........c.ceovvviiiiiiiiii e 25
Appendix C - Notes to the Financial Statements...........ocooiiiiniiininini 28
Appendix D - Contingency DiscloSure.........oocoviieiiniiiiiiiin e 32



INTRODUCTION

The world as we know it is getting smaller and more interconnected every day. E-mail,
pagers and cellular phones, they all link people closer together whether they are across town or
across the world. Just as these technological advances have increased our effectiveness to
communicate with each other, so too must business corporations make advances to enhance their
ability to communicate. Whether it’s with a business partner across the country, or a perspective
business client across the globe, corporations need to be able to translate foreign languages,
exchange foreign currency, and understand foreign financial disclosures if they want to be
competitive in the world of international business.

Although calculations for exchanging currencies are relatively straightforward and
translators of any language can be hired, understanding foreign financial statements and other
foreign disclosures is a difficult, time consuming and usually costly task. Because virtually every
country in the world has its own unique set of standard rules that companies believe will provide
the most important financial information, understanding and comparing this information is
impossible unless the reader is familiar with that particular country’s standards. Unfortunately,
even if the person is familiar with the standards, comparing financial statement information may
be impossible because the standards may differ in their disclosure requirements and therefore
some information is available for companies in one country, but not in another country.
Knowledge of this information may have a significant impact on the decisions made by a
potential investor.

Consider the following simplistic example. Ms. Investor has obtained the financial



statements from two different companies, A and B. Company A is located in a country that has
very detailed and demanding disclosure laws. Company B is located in another country, one that
does not have as “strict” disclosure laws in some areas. Assume that both companies are
identical in every way except what they are required to disclose. By looking at the financial
statements, Ms. Investor decides not to invest in Company A because of a particular footnote to
the statements about a lawsuit brought against the company. Although the footnote states that
the pending lawsuit for $5 million is not likely to be lost by the company, Ms. Investor knows
that the company will at least have to incur the additional legal costs of the court case. Company
B, on the other hand, does not have a corresponding footnote to the line item “legal expenses.”
She decides that Company B has less financial risk, on the basis of her analysis of the financial
statements, and invests in that company. Because of the lack of information available, the
investor has made a decision that she may not have made had she had all of the relevant
information. Also, because one company is required to disclose more information, that company
has lost a potential investor, as well as having to incur additional costs to comply with the
additional disclosure requirements. See Appendix D concerning additional information that

relates to this example.



NEED FOR STANDARDIZED REQUIREMENT

The need for both standardized disclosure requirements and their associated costs are
summarized well by the CEO of Price Waterhouse, Shaun O’Malley. As the head of a
multinational public accounting firm, Mr. O’Malley deals with international business issues daily
and recognizes that “global accounting standards are essential to cross-border economic
activit(ies).” (Rosenberg, 27) Only if management is able to obtain the information they need on
a timely basis, can they use it to make prudent investment decisions in the global market. If the
information is not available to them, or if the time period needed to translate the information is
too great, efficiency in the market as a whole is hindered. O’Malley emphasizes the importance
of the specific role of the disclosure standards within the global accounting standards. “It’s a
disclosure issue . . . what’s needed is full and clear disclosure of finances.” (Rosenberg, 27}
Even if all other accounting policies were to remain unchanged, it is clear to see that if all
companies were required to disclose equivalent information, comparative analysis is still vastly
increased through complying with disclosure standards alone.

There are drawbacks, however, to implementing any sort of global standards. The main
drawback is the direct cost to the company of preparing essentially an entire second set of
financial statements; the first set being those that comply with the individual country’s
accounting standards, the second being those that comply with the international standards. The
cost of producing the second set of financial statements, which is described by Shaun (O’ Malley
as a “competitive cost,” is the cost, from a market perspective, of preparing the financial

statements that comply with the International Accounting Standards. If one company chooses to



prepare the international financial statements, that company ends up paying twofold; once when
it actually incurs the costs and a ‘second’ time because now compared to the company that did
not elect to prepare the second set (and hence incur the extra costs), it is at a disadvantage in the
world market.

Eventually, however, it is hoped that this problem will correct itself, assuming that at
least some companies continue to implement international standards. The shift to international
standards will come about much the same way that the comparative costs described above came
about. That is, if more and more companies disclose international financial statements, those
companies that choose not to will eventually become part of a minority in the world market.
And, when most of the world only accepts the international standards, those who choose not to
change over will be at a disadvantage, from an information standpoint. Consequently, demand
for information for those companies will disappear and with it so will potential investors’ capital.
Therefore, if support for implementation of international accounting standards continues, the
indirect costs to companies of not providing the information will eventually outweigh the direct
costs of providing the information.

Clearly, there is a need for standardized international financial disclosure, but deciding on
exactly what those standards should be and how they should be decided upon is a great
undertaking. This enormous task was undertaken by an organization called the International
Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) on June 29, 1973. Originally, this organization came
into existence through the agreement of the accounting bodies in Australia, the United Kingdom,
the United States of America, Canada, France, Germany, Japan, Mexico, the Netherlands and

Ireland. The preface to the Statements of International Accounting Standards states that “(t)he



business of IASC is conducted by a Board comprising representatives of thirteen countries and
up to four organisations having an interest in financial reporting.” The International Accounting
Standards Committee’s constitution states that they possess “full and complete autonomy in the
setting and issue of International Accounting Standards.” The objectives of the constitution also
state that the IASC was established “to ensure that published financial statements comply with
International Accounting Standards in all material respects and disclose the fact of such
compliance.” However, the objectives are also very clear about the fact that the IASC only has
the authority to “promote their worldwide acceptance and observance,” to “persuade
governments and standard-settings bodies,” and to have its members “agree to support the
objectives of the IASC.” (emphasis added) Although the International Accounting Standards set
by the IASC “do not override the local regulations,” voluntary compliance with other generally
accepted accounting standards is how past standards were originally implemented and self-
regulation of these standards is still a large part of the accounting industry in the United States
today. (International Accounting Standards, 29-31)

The general format that the IASC follows to issue a standard directly reflects voluntary
compliance and self-regulation in the industry. The first step the IASC takes to issue an
International Accounting Standard is to “select a certain subject for detailed study.” The study is
performed by a Steering Committee. The Steering Committee then issues an exposure draft for
consideration by the Board. If approved by at least two-thirds of the Board, the draft is then
submitted to accountancy regulatory agencies, governments, and all others interested in the topic,
(including those individuals who work in the field). At this time, or any other time that it is

deemed necessary, a discussion paper on the topic may be issued by a majority vote of the Board.



As comments are received on the original exposure draft, they are reviewed by the Board and the
exposure draft may be revised. This finally revised exposure draft is then voted upon and if it is
approved by three-fourths of the Board, it is issued as an International Accounting Standard.
Compliance with all International Accounting Standards, in the opinion of the IASC, will
improve the quality of financial statements, increase the degree of comparability, and enhance the
credibility and consequently the usefulness of financial statements throughout the world.
Appendix A contains additional information concerning the International Accounting Standards
Committee Board.

I have chosen to present the financial statements’ disclosures from three countries, the
United States, Australia and the United Kingdom, and to compare their required disclosures to
the IASC required disclosures. The three specific areas I have chosen to concentrate on are
disclosure of accounting policies, accounting for contingencies, and accounting for goodwill.
For my comparison, I have chosen to use the 1995 financial statements from ‘Honeywell Inc.’
(U.S.), ‘Honeywell Limited’ (U.K.), and ‘Honeywell Holdings PTY Limited’ (Australia). By
examining the disclosure differences for a single corporation, the differences found should be
more related to disclosure standard issues than to differences due to different company styles.

Appendix C contains the actual Notes to the Financial Statements for all three companies.



DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The United States” Generally Accepted Accounting Principles define accounting policies
as “(t)he specific accounting principles and the methods of applying those principles that are
judged by the management of the enterprise to be the most appropriate in the circumstances.”
(Irwin, 425) Disclosure of accounting policies must encompass identification of the policy,
related accounting principles and application of those principles that have a material affect on the
financial statements. Specifically, accounting principles that include any of the following must
be adequately described in the accounting policies section of the financial statements:

a. A selection from existing acceptable alternatives

b. Principles and methods peculiar to the industry in which the reporting

enterprise operates
¢. Unusual or innovative application of generally accepted accounting principles

(Irwin, 422)
The United States standards are “flexible” as to the format and location of how accounting
policies are disclosed in the financial statements, as long as they are “an integral part of its
financial statements.” (Irwin, 423) The standards do note, however, that it is preferable to
disclose the accounting policies in a separate section “preceding the notes . . . or as the initial
note.”

Honeywell Inc., and Subsidiaries, U.S.A., lists their “Accounting Policies” as the first
note to the financial statements. Twelve different policies are identified in slightly less than one
page’s length. Although “Consolidation” is listed as the first of the policies, the accompanying

information is summarized in only two sentences. “Derivatives,” which is listed as the tenth



policy, has three paragraphs of corresponding information. The order of the listed accounting
policies in note 1 to the financial statements is as follows: Consolidation, Estimates, Sales,
Earnings Per Common Share, Statement of Cash Flows, Inventories, Investments, Property,
Intangibles, Derivatives, Foreign Currency, and Postemployment Benefits. Information
summarizing each of the policies ranges from one sentence (for Earnings Per Common Share and
Investments) to a few paragraphs (for Statement of Cash Flows, Inventories, and Derivatives).
The United Kingdom’s accounting standards also require the disclosure of accounting
policies. Their standards require that the following accounting policies be included in the
financial statements: “basis of accounting, treatment of associated companies, research and
development, intangible assets, goodwill, fixed asset valuations, investment properties, leased
assets and obligations,” as well as other various contracts, valuations and pension information.
(Wiley, U-6) The standards also explicitly state that companies must “state in their financial
statements whether they comply with ‘applicable accounting standards’.” (Wiley, U-6)
Honeywell Limited, U.K., unlike its parent company Honeywell Inc., lists its accounting
policies in a section preceding the “Notes to the accounts.” The first statement made by
management in the “Accounting policies” section is the above mentioned assertion that “(the
accounts have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards.” (Honeywell
Limited, 7) Thirteen other assertions are made by management in direct reference to accounting
policies. The length of the policies is exactly one page, just slightly longer than Honeywell Inc.’s
accounting policies. With the exception of the accounting policy “Accounting basis,” which is
described in just one sentence, the other twelve policies are described in approximately the same

amount of information. However, “Foreign currency” and “Turnover and revenue recognition”
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both contain two paragraphs and “Acquisitions” and “Tangible fixed assets” both contain small
tables. The order of the listed accounting policies is as follows: Accounting basis, Basis of
consolidation, Investments, Acquisitions, Research and development, Tangible fixed assets,
Intangible fixed assets, Leases, Stocks, Deferred taxation, Pension costs, Foreign currency, and
Turnover and revenue recognition.

Australian accounting standards state that “all material accounting policies . . .must be
describe[d] in [the] financial statements.” The placement of those policies is limited to “the
initial section of the notes to the financial statements,” Another requirement (for public-sector
reporting entities only) is to identify “the statutory reporting requirements, ministerial directives
or other government authority that has determined accounting policies.” (Wiley, A~26-27)

Honeywell Holdings PTY Limited and Its Controlled Entities, Australia, lists their
“Summary of Accounting Policies” as the first note in the *Notes to and Forming Part of the
Financial Statements.” The “General System of Accounting Underlying the Accounts” prefaces
the actual listing of ten different accounting policies and cites the authoritative regulations for
compliance. (Honeywell Holdings, 9-12} Although the Australian subsidiary is the company
with the least number of listed accounting policies, the length is more than three times that of the
previous two companies at three and one-half pages. “Change in Accounting Policy” includes a
small table of numbers. “Principles of Consolidation,” “Foreign Currency,” “Leased Assets,” and
“Employee Entitlements” all contain rather lengthy, detailed descriptions. The list of accounting
policies is listed as follows: Principles of Consolidation, Intangibles, Foreign Currency,
Depreciation, Recoverable Amount of Non-Current Assets, Inventories, Income Tax, Leased

Assets, Change in Accounting Policy and Employee Entitlements.
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The International Accounting Standard for disclosure of accounting policies simply
states, “The significant accounting policies used should be disclosed.” The only addition to this
requirement is “any change that has a material effect in the current period or may have a
material effect in subsequent periods, together with the effect and the reasons” should also be
disclosed. (Wiley, [AS-3) It should be noted that all of the Honeywell financial statements
comply with the International Accounting Standard’s requirement for disclosure of accounting

policies,
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ACCOUNTING FOR CONTINGENCIES

The United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles defines a contingency as
“(a)n existing condition, situation, or set of circumstances involving uncertainty as to possible
gain . . .or loss . . .to an enterprise that will ultimately be resolved when one or more future
events occur or fail to occur.” (Irwin, 8317) Disclosure of contingencies depends upon two
major factors; they are the probability “than an asset has been impaired or a liability has been
occurred” and the ability to determine a “reasonably estimated” amount. (emphasis added, Irwin,
8302) If the contingency is probable, the “nature of an accrual made” is disclosed. (Irwin, 8303)

If the amount of the contingency is material enough to cause the financial statements to be
misleading if omitted, the amount is also disclosed. Contingency nature must also be disclosed if
the contingency is considered to be at least a reasonable possibility, regardless of whether an
amount can be estimated. If, however, an amount or a dollar amount range can be estimated, that
dollar amount or amounts should also be disclosed. Certain loss contingencies, such as
guarantees, are also disclosed even if “the possibility of loss may be remote.” (Irwin, 8304) For
these contingencies, disclosure requirements include the nature of the contingency and the
amount of the guarantee.

Honeywell Inc., and Subsidiaries, U.S.A., lists “Contingencies” as Note 22 to the
financial statements. Three different topics are covered, all giving substantial amounts of
information and the reasoning of management on these matters. The first contingency mentioned
is “Litton Litigation,” which is an appealed court decision on a patent infringement against Litton

Systemns, Inc, Honeywell “believes that the patent judgment against Litton will be upheld on
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appeal . . . (therefore) no provision has been made in the financial statements with respect to this
contingent liability.” (Honeywell, Inc., 49) The second contingency mentioned is
“Environmental Matters,” in which the Environmental Protection Agency has named Honeywell
as a potentially responsible party. Honeywell states, in reference to this contingency, that there is
no material effect on the company. The third contingency is titled “Other Matters.” It states that
Honeywell has “entered into letter of credit agreements” for “certain financing instruments and
insurance policies” for an amount of “approximately $135 million.” (Honeywell Inc., 49)

The United Kingdom's accounting standards for contingencies are similar to the United
States standards. Contingencies also must be recorded if they are “probable” and “can be
estimated with reasonable accuracy.” (Wiley, U-19) If an amount is not accrued for the
contingency, it still must be disclosed in the financial statements. The United Kingdom,
however, does not require any disclosure if the possibility of loss is considered to be remote.

Honeywell Limited, U.K., lists ‘Contingent liabilities’ as Note 20 to the accounts.
“Customs and excise guarantees” are listed at the same amount as the preceding year, “Contract
guarantee and other items” are listed at an amount 64% lower than the preceding year. A
relatively short description about a ‘judgement’ outstanding at year’s end is also included. A
maximum amount for this contingency is listed in the note; but because the company “intends to
appeal against the judgement” and “[tlhe directors consider there [to be] strong grounds for the
appeal to be successful,” no accrual for the above listed amount has been made. (Honeywell
Limited, 10)

Australian accounting standards for contingencies differ from the United Kingdom’s

standards only in terminology. Australia uses the terms “probable” and *reliably measur{able].”

14



Just as with the United Kingdom, if the possibility of loss is remote, no disclosure is required.
(Wiley, A-26)

Honeywell Holdings PTY Limited and its Controlled Entities, Australia, lists “Contingent
Liabilities” as Note 21 to the notes to and forming part of the accounts. The first listed
contingency deals with related entities. Amounts due are disclosed for 1995 and 1994 that are
due to wholly-owned subsidiaries under a deed of cross-guarantee. No pending lawsuits or
judgements of any kind are listed on the financial statements of the Australian Honeywell
subsidiary.

The International Accounting Standard for contingencies is similar to the treatment used
by the United Kingdom and Australia. Contingent losses should be accrued if both “probable”
and “reasonabl[y] estimat[able].” If both of these conditions cannot be met, disclosure is
required. Disclosure is not required for ‘remote{ly]’ possible contingencies. (Wiley, IAS-15)
See Appendix D for additional disclosures and conclusions concerning accounting for
contingencies. Please note that for accounting for contingencies, the United States disclosure

requirement is more rigorous than the International Accounting Standard disclosure requirement.
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ACCOUNTING FOR GOODWILL

The United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principle defines goodwill as “the
excess of the cost of any acquired enterprise over the sum of identifiable net assets.” (Irwin,
26635) Goodwill must be amortized over its estimated useful life, with a limit set of 40 years.
The method of amortization used should be straight-line unless certain stipulations are met and
only then is an accelerated method allowable. The financial statements must disclose both “the
method and period of amortization.” (Irwin, 26638)

Honeywell Inc. lists goodwill under note 13, “Intangible assets.” Two years, {1994 and
1995) of accumulated amortization are shown for goodwill. Other information given on
goodwill in note 13 is the introduction sentence to the small table of numbers that states,
“Intangible assets have been reduced by accumulated amortization as follows.” (Honeywell Inc.,
43) The standard above states that the method and the period of amortization must be disclosed
in the financial statements. Honeywell Inc. lists both of these in note | Accounting Policies,
under the heading “Intangibles.” Straight-line amortization is used, but estimated useful life is
not explicitly stated. The information simply states, “estimated useful lives of not more than 40
years for goodwill.” In addition, note 1 reports that intangibles are carried at their cost.
(Honeywell Inc., 40)

The United Kingdom’s accounting standards for goodwill indicate “a preference for the
immediate write-off of consolidation goodwill to reserves,” although the option is also given to
amortize the goodwill over its useful life, up to 40 years. (Wiley, U-7) In practice, however,

most companies do not amortize goodwill, but instead write it off to reserves (retained earnings).
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“The cumulative amount of goodwill written off in the current year and earlier years, net of any
amounts attributable to subsidiaries sold, has to be disclosed.” (Wiley, U-8)

In Honeywell Limited’s financial statements, information about goodwill is disclosed in
three separate areas. The first area that provides information pertaining to goodwill is found in
the accounting policies that precede the notes to the accounts. Under the heading Acquisitions
the amount of goodwill “arising as a result of  a certain new acquisition is disclosed. Also in the
accounting policies under Intangible fixed assets, the definition of goodwill is stated, as well as
the treatment of goodwill the company uses. Honeywell Limited has chosen to amortize
goodwill “over its estimated useful life up to ten years,” rather than writing it off. (Honeywell
Limited, 7) The accumulated amount of goodwill written off for 1994 and 1995 is disclosed in
Note 8, Intangible fixed assets.

Australian accounting standards define goodwill as “the difference between the fair value
of the consideration given and the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired.” (Wiley, A-27) If
this difference does not represent goodwill, the amount should be written off to the profit and
loss account. The standards require that goodwill be classified as an intangible, non-current asset
and be included in the financial statements. Amortization is “by systematic charges to income
over the period the company s expected to benefit from it.” (Wiley, A-27) The maximum
amortization period is 20 years. Disclosure is required for amortization and the accounting
policy used for goodwill.

Honeywell Holdings lists goodwill under two notes, Note 1 and Note 11. Note 11 lists
the amounts of goodwill for 1994 and 1995 at the cost and the amounts amortized. These

amounts refer to the consolidated amount of goodwill, not the individual company. Under Note
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1, ‘Intangibles,” goodwill is defined and the amortization period is listed as “the period of time . .
.during which the benefits are expected to arise . . .not exceeding 20 years.” (Honeywell
Holdings, 9) The specific period used is not given.

The International Accounting Standard for goodwill requires goodwill to be treated as an
asset and “amortised by recognising it as an expense over its useful life.” Straight-line basis is
recommended for amortization, “unless another amortization method is more appropriate in the
circumstances.” Two different lengths of time are given for the maximum amortization period
for goodwill, five years and twenty years. “The amortization method should not exceed five
years unless a longer period, not exceeding twenty years...can be justified.” Disclosure is also

required of the amount and the period of time used for goodwill.
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CONCLUSION

By looking at the standards for disclosure of accounting policies, accounting for
contingencies, and accounting for goodwill, it is apparent that many different possibilities exist
for their individual treatment. In the standards, the accounting methods appear to be quite
comparable, but in practice, the differences can vary greatly. Note that although the standards for
disclosure of accounting policies and accounting for contingencies are reasonably similar, the
practices for accounting for goodwill have significant differences.

Accounting for goodwill in the United Kingdom is the most lenient of all of the
standards, allowing amortization up to a forty year period or the option of directly writing off
goodwill to reserves. “Reserves” in the United Kingdom is similar to the U.S. “Retained
Earnings” which is an “amount earned by a corporation and not yet distributed to stockholders.”
(Swanson, 381) Writing off all of the acquired goodwill for a single year may involve millions of
dollars, affecting net income greatly. These millions of dollars affect net income in that no dolar
amount for these write-offs is ever shown on the income statement, instead they are directly
written off into the reserves account which appears only on the balance sheet. And, although this
write-off does essentially affect accumulated net income greatly, because it does not appear on
the income statement, it has "no" affect on the company's income for the currrent year.
Conversely, amortizing the entire amount of goodwill over a period of up to forty years may also
be used to affect net income, more directly. A company may use foresight and strategy in
deciding which method would be most financially beneficial.

The United States standards for goodwill, although less lenient than the United Kingdom
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because no option is given to direct write off goodwill, are still rather lenient because the
available length of time for amortizing goodwill is (again) forty years. Honeywell Inc. (U.S.)
uses this forty-year basis to calculate its amortization for goodwill. Honeywell Limited (U.K.),
being a smaller subsidiary of Honeywell Inc., uses an amortization period of only ten years.
Although it does have the option of writing goodwill off directly, it does not opt to do so, unlike
most U.K. companies. Note that Honeywell Holdings (U.K.) could also use a longer
amortization period, up to forty years. Honeywell Holdings (Australia), another subsidiary of
Honeywell Inc., uses the maximuim length of 20 years allowed under Australian accounting
standards for its amortization of goodwill, though it should be noted that for 1995 Honeywell
Holdings consolidated financial statement information, there is no amount of amortized or
acquired goodwill for the year.

By looking at the amortization tables in Appendix B, it is clear that “diversity of
accounting practices [in goodwill] results in a general lack of comparability in financial reports
from one country to the next.” (Mueller, 42) Shown in the tables are the accounting treatment
and dollar amounts of goodwill for each Honeywell company as they appear in the financial
statements. Also listed at the top of the page is the option or options available under each
country’s standards for accounting for goodwill. The first chart shows the company’s income
and the actual amount of goodwill amortized for the year; British pounds and Australian dollars
have been translated into U.S. dollars for ease of comparability at rates of .6568 and 1.2942 per
U.S. dollar, respectively. The next two charts show the amounts of income and goodwill that
would have resulted if a five or twenty year amortization period had been used for goodwill.

This chart illustrates the differences between options available in each country as compared to
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options available under International Accounting Standards. (The numbers in the second and
third charts are only approximate due to foreign currency translations and amounts due to
taxation.)

Honeywell Inc. (U.S.) must amortize goodwill, using straight-line depreciation, for up to
a maximum period of forty years, which it uses. If the maximum amortization period of the
International Accounting Standards of five years is instead used, the amortization for the current
increases by a multiple of eight, which in turn affects Net Income to the point that it becomes a
large Net Loss. The net effect on Net Income is a negative $344.4 million, which brings the Net
Income of $333.6 million down to a Net Loss of $10.8 million. If the longer maximum time
period of twenty years under the International Accounting Standard is used, amortization for the
year is doubled. The net effect on income for the year is then a decrease of $49.2 million,
compared to reported net income. Overlap of the U.S. GAAP and the IAS for the accounting for
goodwill is the first allowed 20 years of amortization, the second twenty years (from years twenty
to forty) is allowed under U.S. GAAP only. Meaning, any U.S. company that elects to amortize
over 20 years or less is following both U.S. GAAP and IAS; any U.S. company that elects to
amortize over a period greater than 20 years, up to a maximum of 40 years, is following U.S.
GAAP only.

Honeywell Limited (U.K.) has two options. It may choose to directly write off all
acquired goodwill for the year, which is an amount of $989,140.80, or it may choose to amortize
goodwill over a period of up to forty years. If Honeywell Limited used the International
Accounting Standards maximum of five years amortization, instead of the ten that it actually

uses, Profit on ordinary activities after taxation would decrease by approximately $1.5 million; if
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the twenty year maximum was used, Profit is increased by approximately $0.5 million.
Unfortunately, Honeywell Holdings (Australia) does not have any acquired or amortized amounts
of goodwill for the year that would show computational differences. However, because the
Australian standards are the closest of the three to the international standards, using systematic
charges to income up to twenty years, the differences would have been the smallest of the three
companies.

Although the International Standards now appear to be more exacting that those of the
three country’s standards, the International Standards were most permissive only a few years ago.
In 1993 International Accounting Standard 32, the standard establishing guidelines for goodwill,
was issued. Before this time, the accounting for goodwill under the International Accounting
Standards allowed the choice of immediately writing off the amount of goodwill or amortizing
goodwill over its estimated useful life. No maximum time period was listed, nor was a method
of amortization suggested. Although this older standard would have allowed all of the Honeywell
companies looked at to conform to International Accounting Standards for goodwill, it did not
realize the goal of harmonization of standards. All of the methods used by the companies, and
available to be used (even if not chosen), did meet the IAS criteria, (but the differences between
the options ranges from writing off all goodwill acquired during the year, to amortizing all
goodwill up to a time period of forty years, and longer according to the older International
Accounting Standard.) There is, however, one problem with the new International Accounting
Standard. Most companies in the United Kingdom, which opt to write off all amounts of
goodwill, and any United States’ companies who use a forty year amortization period, are not

conforming to the International Accounting Standard for the treatment of goodwill.
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And, what good is a set of international standards if no one conforms to them? The
International Standard is currently more strict than most country’s options for accounting for
goodwill, nevertheless the Board hopes that eventually investor demand will dictate the need to
conform to a more universal set of standards, for the sake of comparability. Even now, “(I)f all
multinational corporations observed IASC Standards, significant harmonization would occur.”
(Mueller, 44) The International Accounting Standards Committee is definitely on its way to

creating the standards that the accounting community in all countries will someday conform to.
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APPENDIX A

The International Accounting Standards Committee Board is comprised of "accountancy
bodies in thirteen countries... and up to four other organisations with an interest in financial
reporting.” (International, 7) The current Board members include: Australia, Canada, France
Germany, India, Japan, Malaysia, Mexico, the Nordic Federation of Public Accountants,
Netherlands, South Africa, the United Kingdom, the United States of America, and
representatives of the International Co-ordinating Committee of Financial Analysts' Associations,
the Federation of Swiss Industrial Holding Companies, and the International Association of
Financial Executives Institutes. "The Indian and South African delegations also include a
representative from Sri Lanka and Zimbabwe respectively. Representatives of the European
Commission and the United States Financial Accounting Standards Board attend Board meetings
as observers." (International, 8)

"Each Board Member may nominate up to two representatives and a technical adviser fo

attend Board meetings. IASC encourages each Board Member to include in its delegation

at least one person working in the industry and one person who is directly involved in the

work of the national standard setting body.” (International, 7)

Each Board Member has one vote, as stated in the IASC Constitution, but the number of Board

Members is not explicitly stated. The maximum number of Members from each country is also

not explicitly stated.
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Appendix B

Honeywell Inc.
United States

Treatment of Goodwill:
Options allowed under standards:

1)} Amortize over estimated useful life, up to 40 years, using straight line depreciation

Option chosen:
Amortize over estimated useful life of 40 years

Income Statement

As shown in fi f using 5 ve: If Using 20 years amortization
(in dollars) (in doilars) (in dollars}

Goodwill

amortized |$ 49,200,000.00 $ 393,600,000.00 $  98,400,000.00

for year.......

Net Income

or Net Loss.| $ 333,600,000.00 $ (10,800,000.00) $ 284,400,000.00

Effect on Income $ (344,400,000.00)

$  49,200,000.00




Honeywell Limited
United Kingdom

Treatment of Goodwill:

Options allowed under standards:
1) Amortize over estimated useful life, up to 40 years, using straight line depreciation
2) Write off to reserves **most companies choose this option

Option chosen:
Amortize over estimated useful life of 10 years

Income Statement

(in doliars)

_._,,QJ__Qo__m_av {in dollars) _

Goodwill amertized
for year.......c....... 731,000.00 $ 1,112,971.99 § 2,225043.98 $ 556,486.00

Profit on ordinary
activities after

taxation.............. 11,006,000.00 $ 16,757,003.65 $ 15,644,031.66 $ 17,313,489.64

Effect on income $ (1,112,971.99) $ 556,485.99




Honeywell Holdings PTY Limited

Australia

Treatment of Goodwill:

Options allowed under standards:
1) Amortize over the period that benefit is expected, up to 20 years, using systematic charges to income

Option chosen:
Amortize over estimated useful life of 20 years

Income Statement

(in Australian ao__mav (inU.S. aommav (inU.S. ao:mqmv T .c: us. Qom_m@
Goodwill amortized for
YEaM eeeenreerereaseeeensenne - 8 - $ - $ -
Operating profit after
income tax....cccoeeee. 5,809,000.00 $ 4,488,487.10 $ 4,488,487.10 $ 4,488,487.10

Ml!!!ii:ll]é r||||||1||tll

Effect on Income
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NOTES TO THE 1995 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FROM...

SECTION 1:

Honeywell Incorporated

SECTION 2:

Honeywell Limited

SECTION 3:

Honeywell Holdings PTY Limited

(United States)

(United Kingdom)

(Australia)

28

Page numbers

40-49

7-10, 12

9-26



SECTION 1
Honeywell Incorporated

United States

29



Notes to Financial Statements

Honeywell Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Dollars in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

Nore 1

GonsoLDATION

The consolidated financial statements and accorpanying data comprise
Honeywell Inc. and subsidiaries. All material intercompany transactions
are eliminated.

Accounming PoLicies

Esnmares

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires Honeywel} to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of con-
tingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financiai statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting pericds.

Sates

Product sales are recorded when title is passed to the customer, which usually
occurs at the time of delivery or acceptance, Sales under long-term contracts are
recorded on the percentage-of-completion method measured on the cost-to-cost
basis for engineering-type contracts and the units-of-delivery basis for produc-
tion-type contracts. Provisions for anticipated losses on long-term contracts are
recorded in full when they become evident.

Eannings Per GommoN Skase
Earnings per commeon share are based on the average number of common
shares outstanding during the year.

StatemERT oF Cash FLows
Cash equivalents are all highly liquid, temporary cash investments with an orig-
inal maturity of three months or less.

Cash flows from purchases and maturities of held-to-maturity securities are
classified as cash flows from investing activities. Cash flows from contracts
used to hedge cash dividend payments from subsidiaries are classified as part of
the effect of exchange rate changes on cash.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using

the weighted-average method. Market is based on net realizable value.
Payments received from customers relating to the uncompleted portion of

contracts are deducted from applicable inventories.

INVESTMENTS
Investments in companies owned 20 to 50 percent are accounted for using the
equity method.

ProperTY

Property is carried at cost and depreciated primarily using the straight-line
method over estimated useful lives of 10 to 40 years for buildings and improve-
ments, and three to 15 years for machinery and equipment.

INTANSIBLES

Intangibles are carried at cost and amortized using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives of not more than 40 years for goodwill; four fo 17
years for patents, licenses and trademarks; and three to 24 years for software
and other intangibles. Intangibles aiso include the asset resulting from recogni-
tion of the defined benefit pension plan minimurm liability, which is amortized
as part of net periodic pension cost.
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DerwATIVES

In 1994, Honeywell adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 119, *Disclosure about Derivative Financial Instruments and Fair Value of
Financial Instruments.” Honeywell uses derivative financial instruments such as
foreign currency contracts {forwards, swaps and options) to manage its foreign
currency exposure (see Notes 6, 14 and 15} and interest rate swaps to manage
its exposure to interest rate fluctuations and its mix of fixed and fleating interest
rates {see Notes 14 and 15).

The carrying amounts of foreign currency contracts purchased to hedge
firm foreign currency commitments are deferred and included in the measure-
ment of the related foreipn currency transactions, These hedges are scheduled to
mature coincident with the timing of the underlying foreign currency commit-
ments and transactions. Gains and losses from cther foreign currency transac-
tions are included in selling, general and administative expenses on the income
statement and were not material in any year.

The amount to be paid or received from interest rate swaps is charged or
credited to interest expense over the lives of the interest rate swap agreements.
Any gains realized upon the termination of interest rate swap agreements are
deferred and amortized as an adjustment 1o interest expense of the underlying
lizbiities over the original term of the interest rate swap agreements,

FoReiN CURRENCY

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are generally translated into U. S. dollars
using the exchange rates in effect at the statement of financial position date.
Results of operations are generally translated using the average exchange rates
throughout the period. The effects of exchange rate fluctuations on translation
of assets, liabilities and hedges of ¢ash dividend payments from subsidiaries are
reported as accumulated foreign currency translation and increased/(reduced)
stockholders’ equity $33.5 in 1993, $54.5 in 1994 and 5(3.0) in 1593,

PosTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The enactment by Congress of the Omanibus Budget Reconciliation Act of
1993, which made Medicare the primary provider of medical benefits for dis-
abled former employees after 29 months of disability, reduced the accumulated
benefit obligation for pestemployment benefits by 333.4 in 1993, This change in
estimate is inciuded in cost of sales on the income statement.

Note 2

Honeywell acquired nine companies in 1995, 15 companies in 1994 and eight
companies in 1993 for $37.7, $104.6 and $14.2 in cash, respectively. These
acquisiticns were accounted for as purchases, and accerdingly, the assets ang
liabilities of the acquired entities have been recorded at their estimated fair
values at the dates of acquisition. The excess of purchase price over the esti-
mated fair values of the net assets acquired, in the amount of $32.4 in 1995,
$87.4in 1994 and $11.8 in 1993, has been recorded as goodwill and is amor-
tized over estimated useful lives. The pro forma results for 1995, 1994 and
1993, assuming these acquisitions had been made at the beginning of the year,
would not be significantly different from reported results.

In 1993, Honeywell sold its Keyboard Division to Key Tronic Corporation
for $29.7 in cash, notes and common stock. Proceeds from other asset sales,
including the collection of notes receivable and sale of stock received from asset
sales made in previous years, amounted to $8.1 in 1995, $8.6 in 1994 and $22.9
in 1993, Gains and iosses from asset sales were not matenial in any year and are
included in selling, general and administrative expenses on the income statement.

AcouISITIONS AND SALE OF ASSETS




Note 3

On April 16, 1993, Honeywell anneunced the settiement of its lawsuits against
the Unisys Corporation and other parties in connection with Honeyweil’s 1986
purchase of the Sperry Aerospace Group. Honeywell received $70.0 in cash and
notes and recorded 2 gain of 322.4 in 1993 to offset previously incurred costs
associated with the matter. In addition, the portion of the purchase price origi-
nally allocated to goodwill and other intangibles was reduced by $47.6.

Honeyweil has reached agreement with various camera manufacturers for
their use of Honeywell’s patented automatic focus camera technology. The totai
of alf one-time settlements recorded in these matters, after associated expenses,
resuited in a gain of $10.2 in 1993. Several settlements also included licensing
agreements that require the payment of royaities to Honeywell based upon the
amount of product manufactured or sold by the Heensee. Autofocus royalty
income from the licensing agresments amounted to $8.2 in 1994 and $3t.4 in
1993, and is included in sefling, general and administrative expenses on the
income statement. Autofocus royalty income from licensing agreements was
not material in 1995,

LiTiGATION SETTLEMENTS

Note 4

[n December 1994, Honeywell’s management, with the approval of the board
of directors, committed itself to a plan of action and recorded spectal charges
0f $62.7. The actions undertaken inciuded a continuation of right-sizing the
Space and Aviation Controf business segment, a worldwide consolidation of
manufacturing capacity, a streamlining and realignment of the overhead structure
and corporate expense reductions. Special charges of $51.2 were recorded in
1993 for productivity initiatives to strengthen the company's competitiveness.
Special charges include costs for work force reductions, worldwide faciiities
conselidation and other cost aceruals.

Work force reduction costs primarily include severance costs related to
involuntary termination programs instituted to improve efficiency and reduce
costs. These costs amounted 10 $52.4 1n 1994 and $43.7 in 1993, As aresult of
the 1994 plan, approximately 1,200 employees were terminated. Total expendi-
tures of $42.9 in 1995 included $38.3, $3.8 and $0.8 related to costs incurred in
1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively. Total expenditures of $36.0 in 1994
included 52.9, 526.4 and $6.7 related to costs incurred in 1994, 1993 and 1992,
respectively. Total expenditures of $49.8 in 1993 included $7.8 and $42.0
related to costs incurred in 1993 and 1992, respectively, Special charges of $8.0
from 1994 remain to be paid out as a result of longer-term agreements.

Facilities consolidation costs are primarily associated with consolidations of
branch office space and product lines to restructure and streamline Honeywell's
operations. These costs amounted 10 $10.3 in 1994 and $2.0 in 1993. Total
expenditures of $11.4 in 1995 included 56.9, 0.4 and $4.1 related to costs
incurred in 1994, 1993 and {992, respectively. Total expenditures 0f $8.5 in
1994 included 51.6 and $6.9 related to costs incurred in 1993 and 1992, respec-
tively, Total expenditures of $26.2 in 1993 related to costs incurred in 1992,
Special charges 0f$2.6 from 1994 and $0.9 from 1992 remain to be paid out as
aresult of fease costs associated with vacated facilities.

Other cost aceruals include costs of exiting several product lines which were
no longer considered complementary to Horeywell’s businesses and amounted
10 85.5 in 1993. Total expenditures of 35.5 in 1994 refated to costs incurred in
1993, Total expenditures of $17.0 in 1993 related to costs incurred in 1992.

Cash flows from operating activities have funded and are expected to fund
alt speciai charges.

SPECIAL CHARGES

NoteS

The components of income before income taxes consist of the following:

INcomE Taxes

1995 1994 1993
Domestic ..........coivninnnn., 32854 $208.4 3316.9
Foreign.........oooooi i 220.1 1613 161.6
$505.5 $368.7 84783
The provision for income taxes on that income is as follows:
1995 1994 1993
Current tax expense
United States..................... § 39.8 $338 5 817
Foreign....................ol. 59.9 40.6 360
Stateandlocal. .. ................. 8.9 29 113
Totalcurrent ..................... 108.6 713 126.0
Deferred 1ax expense
UnitedStates. . ......_............ 41.7 13.0 17.9
Foreign...................... oL 175 0.3y 3.8
Stateandlocal.................... 4.1 1.3 36
Total deferred . ................... 63.3 133 273
Provision for income taxes ............ $171.9 3908 5156.3

A favorable tax settlement reduced the 1994 provision for income taxes by
$37.6{30.29 per share).

The enactment by Congress of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of
1993, which raised the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate for corporations
from 34 percent to 35 percent retroactive to January 1, 1993, did not have z
material impact on the 1993 provision for income taxes; however, the enactment
of this legislation did result in a one-time gain of $9.2 ($0.07 per share} in 1993
from the revaluation of deferred tax assets.

A recenciliation of the provision for income taxes to the amount computed
using U.S. federal statutory rates is as follows;

1995 1994 1993

Taxes on income at U.S. federal

statuteryrates................ ..., $176.9 51294 $167.5
Tax effects of foreign income .. ........ (11.7) (15.5) £26.0)
Statetaxes ... ... 2.9 42 10.9
Tax effectof settlement . .............. (37.6)
Adjustments to effective tax rates

used in recording tax assets

and liabilities .................... 27
Other. ..o (3.2) 7.6 39
Provision for income taxes ............ $171.9 S 90.8 $136.3

[nterest costs related to prior years' tax issues are included in the provision
for income taxes. Taxes paid were $128.3in 1995,579.4 in 1994 and Si11.2
in 1993.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Deferred income taxes are provided for the temporary differences between
the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of Honeywell's assets and habili-
ties. Temporary differences comprising the net deferred taxes shown on the
statement of financial position are:

1995 1994
Employeebenefits. ... 5101.6 51422
Miscellaneous ageruals . ... ....ooovie i es 76.4 95.2
Excess of tax over book depreciation/amortization. . . .. (8.4) (24.0%
Asset valuation reserves. ... ... . e 37.6 43.0
Long-term contracts........ooiveierviiean i 16.0 4.2
SHALEEAKES ..ttt s 24.3 28.5
Pension Hability adjustment ... 127 37
L8111 S (53.4) {26.6)
$206.8 §266.2

The components of net deferred taxes shown on the statement of financial
position are:

1995 1994
Deferred tax @ssets .. .. ...t $463.7 5463.8
Deferred tax liabilities . ............ ... . iiiinans 256.9 197.6

Provision has not been made for U.S, or additional foreign taxes on $585.2
of undistributed earnings of international subsidiaries, as those earings are
considered to be permanently reinvested in the operations of those subsidiaries.
It is not practicable to estimate the amount of tax that might be payable on the
eventual remittance of such eamings.

At December 31, 1993, foreign subsidiaries had tax operating loss carry-
forwards of 513.6.

Note 6

Honeywell has entered into various foreign currency exchange contracts
(primarily Belgian francs, Deutsche marks and Canadian dollars) designed to
minimize its exposure to exchange rate fiuctuations on foreign currency trans-
actions. Honeywell only uses foreign currency exchange contracts to hedge
underlying exposures such as non-functional currency receivables and payables
and foreign currency imports and exports. Company policy prohibits specula-
tion in foreign currency contracts.

Foreign exchange contracts reduce Honeywell’s overal} exposure to exchange
rate movements, since the gains and losses on these contracts offset losses and
gains on the assets, liabilities and transactions being hedged. Honeywell hedges
a significant portion of all known foreign exchange exposures, including inter-
company transactions. The notional amount of Honeywell’s outstanding foreign
currency contracts, consisting of forwards, purchased options and swaps was
approximately $1,262.2 and $1,088.6 at December 31, 1995, and 1994, respec-
tively. These contracts generally have a term of less than one year.

ForeicN GURRENCY
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Note 7

In 1994, Honeyweil adopted Statement of Financiai Accounting Standards
No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Invesiments in Debt and Equity Securities,”
which specifies certain accounting and reporting for investments in equity
securities that have readily determinable fair vaiues and for all investments in
debt securities.

Honeywell’s investments in held-to-maturity securities are reported at
amortized cost in the staternent of financial position as follows:

INveSTMENTS N DEsT AnD Eguity SeCURITIES

1995 1994

Cashequivalents. ... $161.6 $1249
Short-term IVEStMERLS . ... v\ vy e et 9.0 6.6
Investmentsandadvances .. ... 6.9 12.9
$177.5 $144.4

Held-to-maturity securities generally mature within one year and include
the following:

1995 1994

Time deposits with financial institutions. ............. $ 334 $ 858
Commercial PaPer. .. .oovvv oo 169.3 424
L0 1T 14.8 16.2
$177.5 S144.4

Honeywell's purchases of held-to-maturity securities, consisting primarily
of commercial paper, amounted to $3,528.0 and $1,674.8 in 1995 and 1994,
respectively. Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity securities amounted
t0 $3,494.3 and $1,673.9 in 1995 and 1994, respectively. Honeyweli has no
investments in trading securities, and available-for-sale securities are not
material. The estimated aggregate fair value of these securities approximates
their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position. Gross unrealized
holding gains and losses were not material in any year.

Note 8

Receivables have been reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts as follows:

RECEIVABLES

1995 1994
Receivables, CUTTEN! . .o .ovvu e e e es £34.5 S3L.t
Long-termreceivables . ............cooo e 6.7 0.7

Receivables inclade approximately $20.1 in 1995 and $21.9 in 1994 bifled
to customers but not paid pursuant to centract retainage provisions. These
balances are due upon completion of the contracts, generally within one vear,

Unbilied receivables related to long-term contracts amount to $314.0 and
$295.9 at December 31, 1995, and 1994, respectively, and are generally billable
and coliectible within one year.

Long-term, interest-hearing notes receivabie from the sale of assets have
been reduced by valuation reserves of $1.8 in 1995 and $1.9in 1994 to an
amount that approximates realizable value.

In 1992, Honsywell entered into a three-year agreement, with a large inter-
national banking institution, whereby it ¢an sell an uadivided interest in a
designated pool of trade accounts receivable up to a maximum of $50.0 on an
ongoing basis and without recourse. As collections reduce accounts receivable



sold, Honeywell may sell an additional undivided interest in new receivables to
bring the amount sold up to the $50.0 maximum. Proceeds recetved from the
sale of receivables are included in cash flows from operating activities in the
statement of cash flows and amounted to $22.4 in 1995, $34.4 in 1994 and
$193.7 in 1993. The uncollected batance of receivables sold amounted to 51.5
and $2.4 at December 31, 1995, and 1994, respectively, and averaged $2.7 and
$4.2 during those respective years. The discount recorded on safe of receivables
is included in selling, general and administrative expenses on the income state-
ment and amounted to $0.2, $0.4 and $0.7 in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
Honeywell, as agent for the purchaser, retains collection and administrative
responsibilities for the participating interests sold.

NoTE 9 | Invenvonies
1995 1994
Finished goods. ...l $356.6 £297.4
Inventories related to long-term contracts. . ... ........ 73.6 89.1
Work inproeess. . ... 15%.5 156.9
Raw materials and supplies......................... 204.7 2168
$794.4 $760.2

Inventories related to long-term contracts are net of payments received from
customers relating to the uncompleted portions of such contracts m the amounts
of $56.4 and $32.5 at December 31, 1995, and 1994, respectively.

Note 10

PRopeRTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1995 1994

Land......ooo $ 7.7 3 782
Buildings and improvements. ... 385.8 623.4
Machinery andequipment .. ............ ...l 2,100.3 1,937.3
Construction In progress. ... ..o..ovveieeeneenn... 93.3 719
$2.857.1 $2,716.8

Note 11

The following is a summary of financial data pertaining to foreign subsidiaries:

FoReicn SuBSIDIARIES

1995 1994 1993
Netincome........ooovveiinia. § 1429 $ 1215 I 1198
ASSCIS ... $1,845.4 S1742.3 31,5463
Liabilities ... ...........oo0 e 802.8 726.4 620.5
Netassets ..o $1,046.6 $1,015.9 3 926.0

insofar as can be reasonably determined, there are no foreign exchange
restrictions that materiaily affect the financial position or the operating results
of Honeywell and its subsidiaries.

Honeywell Ine. and Subsidiaries

Note 12

Following is a summary of financial data pertaining to companies 20 to 50 per-
cent owned. The principal company included is Yamatake-Honeywell Co., Ltd.,
of which Honeywell owns 24.2 percent of the outstanding common stock. This
investment had a market value of $316.3 and $327.3 at December 31, 1995, and
1594, respectively.

Investments In Omier Companies

1995 1994 1593

Sales ... §2,065.1 $1,877.0 21,866.7
Grossprofit..........c.oovvien i, 743.5 680.7 682.4
Netincome........................ 54.2 48.4 69.8
Equity innetincome................ 13.6 105 17.8
Currentassets. . ..........cooeeun.n. $1,400.6 81,3714 31,2970
Noncurrent assets . ....oovovevinnin.. 598.8 616.8 5882
1,999.4 1,988.2 1,885.2

Current habilities. .................. 742.6 841.6 704.5
Noncugrent Habilities ............... 278 225.8 3593
1,070.4 1,067.4 1,063.8

Netassets ..................ooin.. $ 929.0 5 9208 3 8214
Equity innetassets ................. $ 236.8 § 2253 S 2003

Note 13

[ntangible assets have been reduced by accumulated amortization as follows:

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1995 1994
Goodwill ... o % 49.2 S 423
Patents, licenses and trademarks .................... 75.8 175.4
Software and other intangibles ...................... 168.1 152.4

Note 14

Suorr-Term ey

Honeywell had general purpose lines of credit available rotaling $1,089.2 at
December 31, 1995. Committed revolving credit lines with 21 banks total
$725.0, which management believes is adequate to meet its financing require-
ments, including suppert of commercial paper and bank note borrowings. These
tines have commitment fee requirements. There were no borrowings on these
lines at Decernber 31, 1995, The remaining credit facilities of $364.2 have been
arranged by non-U.S. subsidiaries in accordance with customary lending prac-
tices in their respective countries of operation. Borrowings against these lines
amounted to $5.3 at December 31, 19935, The weighted-average interest rate on
short-term borrowings outstanding at December 31, 1995, and 1994, respec-
tively, was as follows: commercial paper, 6.0 percent and 3.7 percent; and notes
payable, 6.5 percent and 5.8 percent.

Desy
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Notes to Financial Statements

Short-term debt consists of the foflowing:

1993 1994
Commercial PAPET. .. ..vvvv e $ 650 $125.0
Notespayable ... 62.8 102.2
Current maturities of jong-termdebt................. 184.6 133.4
$312.4 §360.6
Long-Team Desy
1995 1994
Honeywell Inc.
8% dual-currency yen/U.S. dollar notes due 1995, .. 31202
TUY%due 1996, ... e $100.9 100.0
6%% Deutsche mark bondsdue 1997 . ............ 104.7 95.2
7.15% to 7.71% medium-term notes dug 1998 .. ... 50.0 30.0
7.36% to 7.46% medium-term notes due 1999 ... .. T0.5 70.5
7.35% medium-termnotes due 2060, ............. 75.0
7.45% medium-term notes due 2003 ... ..., 16.0
7.48% medium-term notes due 2002, .. ........ ... 10.0
B¥8due2006. .. ... .. e 160.0 100.0
9%% to 10%% due 2003102010, . ... et 2.0 10,2
Subsidiaries
9.6% Canadian dollar notes due 1996, ............ 84.4 82.0
7.0% to 10.0% due 1996 to 2001,
VATTOUS CUSTERCIES -\t ovvr v e eenineeanons 53.6 268
665.6 634.9
I.ess amount incleded in short-termdebt .. ........ 184.6 1334
$481.0 $501.5

The 8 percent dual-currency yen/U.S. doilar notes matured in August 1995,
These notes were repaid at a fixed exchange rate and were linked te a currency
exchange agreement that resulted in a fixed US. dollar interest cost of 10.5 percent.

The 6% percent Deutsche mark bonds due 1997 are linked to a currency
exchange agreement that converts principal and interest payments into fixed
U.S. dollar obligations with an interest cost of 8.17 percent.

In August 1994, Honeywell initiated a $500.0 medium-term rote program
whereby it may issue notes with maturities of nine months to 30 years denomi-
nated in U.S. doflars or foreign currencies with fixed or variable interest rates.
Honeywell issued $12 1.0 and $100.5 of U.S. dollar fixed-rate medium-term
notes in [995 and 1994, respectively.

Honeywell utilizes interest rate swaps to manage i{s interest rate exposures
and its mix of fixed and floating interest rates. In 1992, Honeywell entered into
interest rate swap agreements effectively converting $100.0 of its 8% percent
debentures due 2006 from fixed-rate debt to fioating-rate debt based on six-
month LIBOR rates. During 1993, $50.0 of the $100.0 swap was terminated
resulting in a gain of $0.9, which was amortized over the remaining life of the
swap agreement. In 1993, Honeywell entered into interest rate swap agreements
effectively converting the 9.6 percent Canadian doltar notes due 1996 to foat-
ing-rate debt based on three-month Canadian bankers acceptance rates. [n 1994,
Honeywell entered into interest rate swap agreements effectively converting
$30.0 of medium-term notes due 1998 and $70.5 of medium-term notes due
1999 to floating rate debt based on three-month LIBOR rates. in 1995, interest
rate swap agreements were initiated o effectively convert 340.0 of medium-
term notes hack to fixed-rate debt. The swap agreements for the 9.6 percent
Canadian dollar notes expire in December 1996 and for the medium-term notes:
$20.0 in December 1996, $20,0 in July 1697, $20.0 in May 1998, $10.0in
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September £998, $50.0 in August 1999 and $20.5 in Septemnber 1999. The swap
agreement for 8% percent debentures expired in September 1995,

Annual sinking-fund and maturity requirements for the next five years on
long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 1995, are as follows:

L0008, L e e $184.6
S 108.9
S R PP 915
L R R 71.1
2000, L e e 75.1

Interest paid amounted to $86.0, $69.1 and $63.9 in 1995, 1994 and 1993,
respectively.

Noit 15

All financial instruments are held for purposes other than trading, The estimated
fair values of all nonderivative financial instruments approximate their carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position with the exception of long-term
debt. The estimated fair value of long-term debt is based on quoted market prices
for the same or similar issues or on current rates available to Honeywel! for debt
of the same remaining maturities. The carrying amount of long-term debt was
$665.6 and $634.9 at December 31, 1995, and 1994, respectively; and the fair
value was $702.6 and $630.3 at December 31, 1995, and 1994, respectively.

The carrying amount of interest rate swaps was zero at December 31, 1995
and 1994. The gross unrealized market loss on interest rate swaps was $4.7 and
$7.5 at December 31, 1995, and 1994, respectively. The carrying amount of for-
eign curtency contracts was $25.7 and 518.3 at December 31,1995, and 1994,
respectively. The gross unrealized market gain on foreign currency contracts
was $32.5 and $26.6 and the gross unrealized market loss was $27.8 and $28.3
at December 31, 1995, and 1994, respectively. The estimated fair vaiue of inter-
est rate swaps and foreign currency contracts, which is the gross uarealized
market gain or loss, is based primarily on quotes obtained from varicus finan-
cial institutions that deal in these types of instruments.

Honeywell is exposed to credit risk to the extent of nonperformance by the
counterparties to the foreign currency contracts and the interest rate swaps dis-
cussed above. However, the credit ratings of the counterparties, which consist of
a diversified group of financial institutions, are regularly monitored and risk of
default is considered remote.

Note 16

As lessee, Honeywell has minimum annual lease commitments outstanding at
December 31, 1995, with the majority of the leases having initial periods ranging
from one to 10 years. Following is a summary of operating lease information:

Fasr Varue of FiNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

LEaSING ARRANGEMENTS

Operating Leases

T U I §105.6
1 R R 82.5
O 60.7
FO00 . e 44.5
000, . e 34.2
2000 andbeyond ... e 131.0
$458.5



Rent expense for operating leases was $143.4 in 1995, $136.9 in 1994 and
$134.21n 1993,

Substantially all leases are for plant, warehouse, office space and automobiles.
A number of the leases contain renewal options ranging from one to 10 years.

Note 17 | Gapma Stocx
Additional
Commaon Paid-In Treasury
Stock Capital Stock
Bafance January 1,1993 .............. $282.7 34238 $(1,219.0)
Purchase of treasury stock -
6,916,868 shares. . ................ (240.0)
Issued for employee stock plans -
1,907,165 treasury shares.......... 7.7 306
110,934 shares canceled . ... ... .. (0.2)
Balance December 31,1993 ... ... ... 282.5 431.5 (1,428.4)
Purchase of treasury stock -
5,223,800 shares. .. ............... (168.0)
[ssued for empioyee stock plans ~
962,242 treasury shares, . .......... 154 199
42,570 sharescanceled .. .......... {G.1)
Balance December 31,1994, .......... 2824 446.9 (1,576.5)
Purchase of treasury stock -
3,090,400 shares. . ................ (129.3)
Issued for Honeywell Foundation pledge -
1,000,000 treasury shares.. ... ... 134 217
Issued for employee stock pians —
1,814,714 treasury shares.......... 21.0 339
159,296 shares canceled . .......... {6.2)
Balance December 31,1995 ... ... $282.2 $481.3 $(1,650.2)

Key EmpLoYEE Puans

[1 1993, the board of directors adopted, and the stockholders approved, the 1993
Honeywell Stock and Incentive Plan. The plan, which terminates December 31,
1998, provides for the award of up to 7,500,000 shares of common steck. The
purpose of the plan is to further the growth, development and financiaf success
of Honeywell and its subsidiaries by aligning the personal interests of key
employees, through the ownership of shares of common stock and through
other incentives, to those of Honeywell stockholders. The plan is further
intended to provide fexibility to Honeywell in its ability to compensate key
employees and to motivate, attract and retain the services of such key employ-
ees who have the ability to enhance the value of Honeywell and its subsidiaries.
Awards made under the plan may be in the form of stock options, restricted
stock or other stock-based awards. The plan replaced existing similar plans, and
awards currently outstanding under those pians were not affected. There were
9,099,612 shares reserved for all key employee plans at December 31, 1995.

Honevwell Inc. and Subsidiaries

Options to purchase common stock have been granted to key empioyees at
100 percent of the market price on date of grant. The following is a summary of
stock options under all plans;

1995 1994 1993

Granted —

Number of shares ,............. 1,891,333 1,001,250 969,173

Pricepershare................. $31-348 $33-336 $31-338
Exercised -

Number of shares .............. 1,248,457 320,337 1,020,769

Pricepershare................. $15-338 $12-833 $12-833
Outstanding December 31 -

Numberofshares .............. 5,963,023 5,346,237 4,739,683

Price pershare,................ $15-848 $15-338 $12-538

Cptions totaling 4,086,647 shares at prices ranging from $16 to 538 were
exercisable at December 31, 1995,

Restricted shares of common stock are issued to certain key employees as
compensation. Restricted shares are awarded with a fixed restriction peried,
usually five years, or with a restriction period that may be shortened dependent
on the achievement of performance goals within a specified measurement
period. Participants have the rights of stockholders, including the right to
receive cash dividends and the right to vote. Restricted shares forfeited revert to
Honeywell at no cost. Restricted shares issued totaled 212,781 in 1995, 141,376
in 1994 and 533,995 in 1993. The cost of restricted stock is charged to income
over the restriction period and amounted to $3.2 in 1995, 35.6 in 1994 and
$6.3 in 1993. At December 31, restricted shares outstanding pursuant to key
employee plans totaled 746,150 in 1995, 767,209 in 1994 and 775,861 in 1993.

Emprovee Srack Mavcy PLans

In 1990, Honeywell adopted Stock Match and Performance Stock Match plans
under which Honeywell matches, in the form of Honeywell common stock,
certain eligible U.S. employee savings plan contributions. Shares issued under
the stock match plans totaled 571,905 shares in 1995, 634,561 shares in 1994
and 643,913 shares in 1993 ata cost of $24.2, $20.7 and $22.3, respectively.
There were 1,141,829 shares reserved for employee stock match plans at
December 31, 1995,

Srack PLeose

In 1993, Honeywell pledged to the Honeywell Foundation a five-year option to
purchase 2,000,000 shares of common stock at $33 per share. This option is
transferable to charitable organizations and exercisable in whote or in part, sub-
Ject to certain conditions. from time to time during its term. Shares purchased
under the option totated 1,000,000 in 1995. No shares were purchased under
this option in 1994 or 1993,

PREFERENGE STOCK
Twenty-five million preference shares with a par vatue of $1 have been autho-
rized. None have been issued at December 31, 1995.
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NoTE 18 | Rerumen Earnings
1995 1994 1993

BalanceJanuary L.................. $2,600.4 $2,4473 $2,247.0
Netincome........................ 3336 2789 3222
Dividends

1995-31.01 pershare.......... {128.2)

1994 - 5097 pershare .., ........ (125.8)

1993 - $0.9075 pershare. ... .. .. (121.9)
Balance December31............... $2,805.8 $2,600.4 52,4473

Included in retained earnings are undistributed eamings of companies 20 to
30 percent owned, amounting to $144.7 at December 31, 1995.

Nore 19

Honeywetl isa global controls company focused on creating value through
control technology. Honeywell serves customers worldwide through operations
engaged in the design, development, manufacture, marketing and service of con-
trol solutions in three industry segments — Home and Building Control, Indus-
trial Control and Space and Aviation Control.

Home and Building Control provides products and services to create efficient,
safe, comfortable environments by offering controls for heating, ventilation,
humidification and air-conditioning equipment; security and fire alarm systems;
home automation systems; energy-efficient Highting conttols; and building man-
agement systems and services. Customers inciude building managers and owners;
distributors and wholesalers; heating, ventilation and air conditicning manufac-
turers; home butlders; home owners; and original equipment manufacturers.

Industriai Control produces systems for the automation and controf of
process operations in industries such as oil refining, oil and gas drilling, pulp
and paper manufacturing, food processing, chemical manufacturing and power
generation; solid-state sensors for position, pressure, air fiow, temperature and
current; precision electromechanical switches; manual controls; advanced
vision-based sensors; fibet-optic components; and soleroid valves used in fuid
control and processing industries. Customers include appliance manufacturers;
automotive companies; food processing companies; oil and gas producers,
refining and petrochemical companies; pharmaceutical companies; paper corn-
panies; and wsilities.

Space and Aviation Control is a full-line avionics supplier and systems inte-
grator for commercial, military and space applications, providing automatic
flight control systems; electronic cockpit displays; flight management systems;
navigation, surveillance and warning systems; severe weather avoidance sys-
tems; and flight reference sensors. Customers include airframe manufacturers;
international, national and regional airlines, NASA; prime U.S. defense con-
tractors; and the U.S. Department of Defense.

The “other” category comprises primarily research and development opera-
tions, such as Solid State Electronics Center and Honeywell Technology Center,
that are not a significant part of Honeywell’s operations either individually orin
the aggregate.

Information concerning Honeywell's sales, operating profit and identifiable
assets by industry segment can be found on page 29. This information for 1995,
1994 and 1993 is an integral part of these financial statements. Sales include
exiernal sales only, Intersegment sales are not significant. Corporate and other
assets include the assets of the entities in the “other” category and cash. short-
term investments. investments. property and deferred taxes held by corporate.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Following is additional financial information relating to industry segments:

1995 1994 1993
Capital expenditures

Home and Building Control ... ... $ 87.2 $ 956 £ 736
Industrial Controt............... 73.0 73.6 72.8
Space and Aviation Control. . ... .. 42.9 54.9 58.4
Corporateandother ............. 35.0 383 273
$238.1 $262.4 $232.1

Depreciation and amortization
Home and Building Centrol ... .. § 874 $ 718 3679
Industrial Control ., ............. 69.3 67.1 59.9
Space and Aviation Control. . ..... 169.7 120.0 127.0
Corporateand other ............. 26.5 285 30.1
$292.9 $287.4 $284.9

Honeywell engages in material operations in foreign countries, the majority
of which are located in Eurcpe. Other geographic areas of operation include
Canada, Latin America and Asia Pacific.

Following is financial information relating to geographic arcas:

1995 1494 7993
External sales
UnitedStates . .................. $4,087.5 $3,824.7 $3,895.1
Europe ........... ool 1,858.9 1,528.5 1,441.2
Otherareas..................... 784.9 703.8 626.7
$6,731.3 $6,057.0 $5.963.0
Transfers between geographic areas
United States ., ......oovvivnen s $ 318¢6 § 2933 $ 2467
Europe ...l 67.1 46.3 36.9
Otherareas..................... 61.5 54.3 47.6
3 4472 3 3939 S 1312
Total sales
UnitedStates ................... $4,406.1 $4,118.0 $4,141 8
Burope ...l .. 1,926.0 15748 1,478.1
Otherareas.. ................... 846.4 758.1 674.3
Eliminations ................... {447.2) (393.9} (331.2%
$6,731.3 $6,057.0 $5,963.0
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1995 1994 1993 Following is a summary of assumptions used in the accounting for the U.S,

. defined benefit plans.

Qperating profit
United States................... $ 4254 $ 2437 $ 3841 1995 1994 1993
(E:_:)I;;Zfe """""""""""" 12}.; 12?; ljgﬁ Discount rate used in determining
O eeeee e > . . presentvalues..........c.......... 1.5% 2.5% 7.5%
Operatingprofit................. 672.8 5240 568.7  Annual increase in future
Interestexpense................. (83.3) (75.5) (68.0} compensation levels. . ............. 3.5% 4.5% 4.0%
Litigation settlements. ........... 32.6  Expected long-term rate of
Equityincome.................. 13.6 10.5 17.8 TEfUIM O ASSets. . ...oovvvennen .. 8.5% 8.5% 8.5%
General corporate expense ....... {97.6) (89.3) (72.6)
[acome before income taxes . S 505.5 3 1697 S 4785 .Employees in foreign countries who are not U.S. ?itizens are (.:overed by
various refirement benefit arrangements, some of which are considered to be
Identifable Assels d:eﬁned b».fneﬁ! pension plans for accoupting pUTposes. The net cost of a.ll for-

. ¢ign pension pians amounted to 5(3.6) in 1995, $1.2in 1994 and $14.2 in 1993.
United States ..o §2,3311 $2,356.2 523315 The components of net periodic pension cost for foreign defined benefit
Burope ...l 1,375.0 [,303.1 L1114 . .

Otherareas. .................... 461.4 4349 357, Pensionplansareasfollows:

Corporate . ..............ooceves 892.7 791.7 792.1 1995 1994 1993

$5,060.2 34,8359 $4,598.1  Service cost of benefits earned
duringtheperiod ................. 3.2 $303 §25.8

Honeywetl transfers products from one geographic region for resale in [nterest cost of projected
another. These transfers are priced to provide both areas with an equitable share benefit obligation. ................ 55.7 47.6 46.3
of the overall profir, Actualreturnonassets................ {90.6) (43.2) ({1

Operating profit is net of provisions for special charges amouating to $62.7 Net amortization and deferral. ... ... .. (3.2) (37.DH 50.7
and 3512 in 1994 and 1993, respectively, (see Note 4) as foliows: United $(6.9) 5(2.4) S

States, 323.2 and $22.4; Europe, 329.6 and $20.3; other areas, $9.9 in 1994.
General corporate expense includes special charges of 38.5 in 1993.

General corporate expense has been reduced by royalty income of 8.2 in
1994 and $31.4 in 1993 (see Note 3).

Nore 20 Pension Puws

Honeywell and its subsidiaries have noncontributery defined benefit pension
pans that cover substantially all of their U.S. employees. The plan covering
non-union employees provides pension benefits based on employee average
earnings during the highest paid 60 consecutive calendar months of employment
during the 10 years prior to retirement. The plan covering union employees
provides penston besnefits of stated amounts for each year of credited service.
Funding for these plans is provided solely through contributions from Honeywell
determined by the board of directors after consideration of recommendations
from the plans’ independent actuary. Such recommendations are based on actu-
arial valuations of benefits payable under the plans.

The components of niet periodic pension cost for U.S. defined benefit pension
plans are as follows:

1995 1904 1993
Service cost of benefits earned
during theperiod ................. $ 50.5 $ 538 S 483
Interest cost of projected
berefit obligation................. 222.8 2085 1989
Actuai tefum onassets, . ..., (400.8) (739 (225.7
Net amortization and deferral. ... ... .. 228.9 {92.6) 69.3
$101.4 $ 894 $90.8

Assumptions used in the accounting for foreign defined benefit plans were:

1995 1994 1993
Discount rate used in determining
presentvalues................. 4.5-9.5% 4.5-9.0% 5.0-9.0%
Annual increase in future
compensation fevels ........... 2.0-7.25% 2.0-8.0% 2.0-8.0%
Expected long-term rate of
TEfUrR ONAsSets .. ... ...vel.. 5.5-9.0% 5.5-9.5% 6.0-9.5%

The plans’ funded status as of September 30 and amounts recognized in
Honeywell’s statement of financial position for its pension plans are summa-
rized on page 48.
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Plans Whose Plans Whose
Assets Exceed Accumulated
Accumulated Benefits

1995 (U.S. and Foreign} Benefits Exceed Assets

Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:

Vested benefit obligation. ................... .. $(503.3)  $(2,778.7)

Accumulated benefit obligation.................. §(506.5)  $(2,988.4)

Projected benefitobligation .............ooo0 0l 5(631.4)  $(3,236.0)
Plan assetsat fairvalue. .............coooooii ol 809.2 2,740.5
Projected benefit obligation (in excess of)

lessthanplanassets .. ... 177.8 (495.5)
Remaining unrecognized net transition

obligation (asSet) .......oveiiii i (68.6) 111
Unrecognized priorservice cost...........ovovivns .. 3.8 205.9
Unrecognized net (gain) 1oss. ...t (34.6) 259.8
Fourth-quarter 1995 contributions to plans, ........... 361
Adjustment fo recognize minimum liability........... (220.2)
Overfunded (unfunded) pension asset

(liability) recognized in the statement

of fimencial position.. ...l § 784 § (202.8)

Plans Whose Plans Whose
Assets Exceed Accumulated
Accumulated Benefits

1994 (U.S. and Foreign) Benefits Exceed Assets

Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:

Vested benefit obligation. ............. ... ... $(409.2) 324127

Accumulated benefit cbligation. . ............. ... 4147y $(2,581.3)

Projected benefit obligation ..................... $(587.6)  $(2,847.8)
Planassetsat fairvalue. .......................... .. 7238 2,386.9
Projected benefit obligation (in excess of)

lessthanplanassets . ..................... 136.2 (460.9)
Remaining unrecognized net transition

obligation (asset) ...l (76.3) 52
Unrecognized prior servicecost............oooiiiis 17 2334
Unrecognizednetloss ... 10.6 160.4
Fourth-quarter 1994 contributions toplans. ........... 248
Adjustment to recognize minimurs lability .. ..... ... (129.4)
Overfunded (unfunded) pension asset

(}ability) recognized in the statement

of financial position .. ............. ... $ 72.2 $ (166.5)

Adjustments recorded to recognize the minimum liability required for
defined benefit pension plans whose accumuiated benefits exceed assets
amounted to $220.2 in 1995 and $129.4 in 1994. A corresponding amount was
recognized as an intangible asset to the extent of unrecognized prior service
cost and unrecognized transition obligation. At December 31, 1995, 832.6 of
excess minimum liability resulted in a reduction in stockholders’ equity, net of
income taxes, of $19.9. At December 31, 1994, $9.6 of excess minimum liabil-
ity resulted in a reduction in stockholders’ equity, net of income taxes, of $5.9.

Plan assets are held by trust funds devoted to servicing pension benefits and
are not available to Honeywell until all covered benefits are satisfied after a plan
is terminated. The assets hefd by the trust funds consist of a diversified portfolio
of fixed-income investments and equity securities.
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Norte 21

Substantiaily all of Honeywell’s domestic and Canad:an employees who retire
from Honeywell between the ages of 55 and 65 with {0 or more years of service
are eligible to receive health-care benefits, until age 65, identical to those avail-
able to active employees. Honeywell funds postretirement benefits on a pay-as-
you-go basis.

The components of net perfodic postretirement benefit cost are as follows:

PosTReTiREMENT BENEENS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

1995 1994 1993
Service cost of benefits earned
during theperiod ................. §11.5 3104 s11s
Interest cost on accuraulated post-
retirement benefit ebligation ....... 23.1 18.0 222
Netamortization. ............ovvvn-nn 1.1 0.5
3357 $28.9 $33.7

The amounts recognized in Honeywell's statement of financial position are
as follows:

1995 1994
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation:
|0 11 ¢ § 904 § 877
Fully eligible active plan participants .. ........... 63.8 587
Other active plan participants. ................... 175.5 151.8
Unrecognized prior service cost. ..........ouvvnu. (6.9 (7.7
Unrecognized net gain {loss) .................... {14.8) 23
Accrued postretirement benefitcost. ... .............. 5308.0 $292.8

The discount rate used in determining the APBO was 7,0 percent in 1995
and 8.0 percent in 1994. The assumed heaith-care cost trend rate used in meg-
suring the APBO was 8.2 percent in 1996, then declining by 0.5 percent per
year to an ultimate rate of 5.5 percent. The health-care cost trend rate assumption
has a significant effect on the amounts reported. For example, a one percent
increase in the health-care trend rate would increase the APBG by 11.3 percent
at December 31, 1995, and the net periodic postretirement benefit cost by
13.6 percent for 1995.

Note 22

Lirron Lmeamen

On March 13, 1990, Litton Systems, Inc. filed suit against Honeywell in ULS.
District Court, Central District of Californis, alleging Honeywell patent infringe-
ment relating to the process used by Honeywell to coat misrors incorporated
in its ring laser gyroscopes; attempted monopolization and predatory pricing
by Honeywell of certain aiieged markets for preducts containing ring laser
gyroscopes; and intentional interference by Honeywell with Litton’s prospec-
tive advantage in European markets and with its contractual relationships with
Ojai Research, Inc., 2 California corporation. Honeywell generally denied
Litton’s allegations, contested both the validity and infringement of the patent,
and alleged that the patent had been obtained by Litton’s inequitable conduct
before the United States Patent and Traderrark Office. Honeywell alse filed
counterclaims against Litton alieging, among other things, that Litton’s busi-
ness and litigation: conduct viotated federal and state laws, causing Honeywel}
considerable damage and expense.

CONTINGENCIES




On January 9, 1995, Judge Mariana Pfaclzer of the U.S. District Court set
aside an August 1993 jury verdict and damage award of $1,200.0 against
Honeywell in the patent and interference with contract case. She ruled, among
other things, that the Litton patent was unenforceable because it was obtained
by inequitable conduct and invalid because it was an invention that would have
been obvious from combining existing processes. She further ruled that if her
judgment were ever subsequently vacated or reversed on appeal, Honeywell
would be granted a new trial on the issue of damages because the jury’s 1993
award was inconsistent with the clear weight of the evidence and permitting it to
stand would constitute a miscarriage of justice. Litton has appealed to the Court
of Appeals for the Federal Circuit, Washington, D.C. Briefs for the appeal have
been submitted by the parties and oral arguments were presented December 8,
1995, In the companion antitrust case, Honeywell filed a motion for summary
Judgment to dismiss all of Litton’s claims. The motion was denied, and the trial
for those claims commenced November 20, 1995, before Judge Pfaelzer and a
different jury.

Honeyweli believes that the patent judgment against Litton will be upheld
onappeal, and that Littons antitrust claims are without merit. As a result, no
provision has been made in the financial statements with respect to this contin-
geat liability.

EnveroMmENTAL MATTERS

Honeywell’s manufacturing sites generate both hazardous and nonhazardous
wastes, the treatment, storage, fransportation and disposal of which are subject
to various tocal, state and national laws relating to protection of the environment.
Honeywell is in varying stages of investigation or remediation of potential, alleged
or acknowledged contamination at currently or previously owned or operated
sites and at off-site Jocations where its wastes were taken for treatment or dis-
posat. In connection with the cleanup of various off-site locations, Honeywell,
zlong with a large number of other entities, has been designated a potentially
responsible party (PRP) by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency under
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
or by state agencies under similar state laws (Superfund), which potentially
subject PRPs to joint and several Hability for the costs of such cleanup. [n
addition, Honeywell is incurring costs relating to environmental remediation
pursuant o the federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. Based on
Honeywetl's assessment of the costs associated with its envitonmental responsi-
bilities, compliance with federal, state and local laws regulating the discharge
of materials into the environment, or otherwise refating to the protection of the
environment, has not had, and in the opinion of Honeywell managemesnt, will
not have a material effect on Honeywel!'s financial position, net income, capital
expenditures or competitive position, Honeyweil's opinion with regard to
Superfund matters is based on its assessment of the predicted investigation,
remediation and associated costs, its expected share of those costs and the
availability of legal defenses. Honeywell’s policy is to record environmental
liabilities when loss amounts are probable and reasonably estimable.

Omien Marrers
Honeywell is a party to a large number of other legal proceedings, some of
which are for substantial amounts. It is the opinion of management that any
losses in connection with these matters will not have a material effect on
Honeywell’s net income, financiai position or liquidity.

Honeywell has entered into letter of credit agreements with various finan-
cial institutions to support certain financing instruments and insurzance policies
aggregating approximately $135.0 at December 31, 1995,

Honeywell Inc. and Subsidiaries

Nore 23

QuarterLY Dara (Unaunizen)

1995 Ist Otr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Om. dth Otr,
Sales ....ooiiiiiien $1,478.7 $1,655.6 $1,680.3 $1,916.7
Costofsales.......... 1,013.2 1,137.8 1,148.1 1,285.1
Netincome........... 54.7 08.9 84.2 125.8

Pershare.......... 0.43 §.54 0.66 0.99
1954 Ist Otr 2nd Ot 3rd Qur. 4th O,
Sates ................ $1,347.9 $1.463.8 $1,507.6 $1,737.7
Costofsales.......... 917.3 1,001.8 1,011.9 1,151.1
Netincome........... 477 369 69.4 104.9

Pershare.......... 0.36 (.44 0,54 0.81

The fourth quarter of 1994 includes special charges of $62.7, or $37.6
(50.29 per share) after income taxes (ses Note 4). The fourth quarter of 1994
also includes a reduction of the provision for income taxes of $37.6 ($0.29 per
share) related to a favorabie tax settlement (see Note 5).

Common Stock Price

{New York Stock
Dividends Exchange Composile)

Per Share High Low

1995 First Quarter............. 528 3384 $30%
Second Quarter........... 25 447 36%

Third Quarter ............ 25 464 40%
Fourth Quarter........... 26 494 39%

1994 FirstQuarter. .............. £.24 3354 $3n
Second Quarter............ .24 344 304

Third Quarter.............. 24 36% 3
Fourth Quarter............. 25 35% 284

Stockholders of record on February 2, 1996, totaled 32,529.

Note 24| Sussequent Evenr

On February 12, 1996, Honeywell announced that it had entered into a definitive
agreement to acquire Duracraft Corp. for approximately $283.0 in cash. Under
the terms of the agreement, which was unanimously approved by the boards of
directors of both companies, a Honeywell subsidiary wilf commence an ali-
cash tender offer for ail the shares of Duracraft. The offer is conditioned upon,
among other things, there having been validly tendered, and not withdrawn
prior to the expiration of the tender offer, a number of Duracraft shares which
equal two-thirds of the shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis and the receipt
of all necessary reguiatory approvals. The offer is not subject to financing.
Duracraft Corp. develops, manufactures and markets consumer househoid
products in five major areas: heaters, fans, humidifiers, air cleaners and vapor-
izers. The acquisition will be accounted for as a purchase and will be included
int the Home and Building Control industry segment.
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Accounting policies

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards. The accounting policies
adopted are set out below.

Accounting basis
The accounts are prepared under the historical cost
convention.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated accounts are based on the accounts of
Honeywell Limited and all its subsidiary undertakings for
the year ended 31 December 1995. When subsidiary
undertakings are acquired, turnover and trading results are
included in the consolidated profit and loss account from
the date of acquisition under the acquisition method of
accounting.

Investments

Honeywell Limited's interest in subsidiary undertakings
and other investments is shown at cost less provision
for any permanent diminution in value.

Acquisitions

100% of the issued share capital of First Move Facilities
Management Limited was acquired on 19 July 1993 for
a consideration of £1,564,000. This acquisition has been
accounted for by the acquisitiocn method of accounting.
The amount of goodwill arising as a resuit of the
acquisition was £1,506,000.

The following table explains the adjustments made to the
book value of the major category of assets and liabilities
acquired to arrive at the fair values included in the
consolidated financial statemnents at the date of
acquisition:

Book Fair Value
Amount Revaluation to Group
£000 £000 £000
Fixed assets 214 (82) [32
Current assets 745 (268) 477
Creditors and provisions (662) t1 (551
297 (239) 58

Research and development

All costs associated with research, engineering, product
design and product development are written off in the
year of expenditure.

Tangible fixed assets

Depreciation is provided using the straight line method at
rates calculated to write off the relevant assets over their
remaining useful lives. The annval depreciation rates used
for the major categories of asset are:

Freehold buildings 5%
Short leaseholds 10% or life of lease
if under 10 years

Plant and machinery 8% t0 33%
Leased motor vehicles 5%
Fixtures and fittings 6% o |7%

HONEYWELL LIMITED

Intangible fixed assets

Goodwill represents the difference between the purchase
price of subsidiary undertakings acquired and the fair
vajue of their underlying net assets. Goodwill is written
off over its estimated useful life up to ten years.
Know-how is written off over its remaining useful life,
estimated at four years.

Leases

Assets held under finance leases and the related lease
obligations are recorded in the balance sheet at the fair value
of the leased assets at the inception of the leases. The amounts
by which the lease payments exceed the recorded lease
obligations are treated as finance charges which are
amortised over each lease term to give a constant rate of
charge over the remaining balance of the obligation, Rentai
costs under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss
account in equal amounts over the perieds of the leases.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost represents materials, direct labour and appropriate
production overheads.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided on timing differences arising
from the different treatment of items for accounting and
taxation purposes. It is calculated at anticipated future tax
rates on differences expected to reverse in the future.

Pension costs

The expected costs of providing pensions are recognised
over the period the group derives benefit from the
employees’ services.

Foreign currency

Amounts receivable and payable which are denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into pounds sterling at
rates of exchange approximating to those ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains or [osses resulting
from the year's trading are reflected in the cperating
resuit for the year.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the
retransiation of investments in overseas net assets
are immaterial to the group and are reflected in the
operating resuit for the year.

Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover comprises net sales to customers, including
Honeywell Inc., group companies outside the Honeywell
Limited group, and rental and service revenues. Revenue
from sales of manufactured products is recognised on
shipment to the customer, which coincides with transfer
of risk of ownership.

Revenue from certain contracts for tailor-made control
systemns is recognised on the percentage of completion
basis. Where the revenue recognised for a particular
contract exceeds the progress payments received or
receivable, the excess is disclosed within debtors as
amounts recoverable on contracts.
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Notes to the accounts
for the vear ended 31 December 1995

1. Results by segment

The group operates substantially within Europe. The

anatysis of turnover, operating profit and net assets

by class of business is as follows:

Turnover

Home and building control
Industrial

Space and aviation

Operating profit

Home and building controi
Industrial

Space and aviation

Net assets

Home and building control
Industrial

Space and aviation

Net assets attributable to operations
Cash and cash equivalents

Finance lease obligation

Bank loan

2. Other operating expenses
Research and deveiopment
Bistribution costs
Administrative expenses

3. Interest payable

On amounts repayable within five years
on bank overdrafts and other loans

On finance leases

4, Employees and directors

Average number of persons emploved
during the year

Factory and engineering

Selling, servicing and marketing
General and administration

Staff costs

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Directors' remuneration
Emoluments

HONEYWELL LIMITED

1695 1994

£000 £000
136,417 132,966
116,474 106,788
16,651 18,590
269,542 258,344
7,925 8,128
9,126 9,052
1,443 3,104
18,494 21,244
47,830 40,386
45,807 35,042
6,749 8,359
100,386 83,787
3,063 9947

- (17)
(30,000) (16,274)
73,449 77,443
2,629 2,482
22,630 21,363
17,483 13,706
42,742 37,551
3,503 2,550
6 406
3,509 2,856

Number Number
1,016 46
1,428 1,458
244 294
2,688 2,698

£000 £000
50,047 55,695
5,087 5,357
997 1,427
65,131 62,479
327 304

Emoluments excluding pension contributions paid to the
Chairman who is the highest paid director were
£211,399 (£1994 £198,658),

The numbers of other directors in the following
remuneration bands were:

1995 1994
Up t0 £5,000 1 !
£105,001 -£110,000 - !
£115,001 -£120,000 1 -

1994

The directors had no interests in shares or debentures

in the company or any other company in the UK group.
They are not required to notify the company of interests in
shares or debentures in the ultimate parent company as it is
incorporated outside the UK.

5. Pension commitments

The group operates a number of pension schemes in the UK.
The main pension scheme which makes benefits available to
the majority of the group's employees, is a funded defined
benefit pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from the group in a trustee administered fund.

Pension cost is assessed in accordance with the advice of a
qualified actuary using the projected unit funding method.
The most recent valuation was at 30 September 1994.

The assumptions which have the most significant effect

on the results of the valuation are those relating to the
return and dividend growth of investments and the rates of
increase in salaries and pensions. It was assumed that the
investment return would be 2.53% higher than the annual
increase in salaries and 5% higher than the annual increase in
present and future pensions, and that the dividend growth
would be 2% below the annual increase in salaries. At

1 October 1994, the scheme's assets had a market value of
£245m and were estimated to be sufficient to cover 156%
of the benefits that had accrued to members, after allowing
for expected future increases in earnings.

Contributions of the group's subsidiary undertakings have
been suspended for the plan periods ending 30 September
1995 and 1996 on the recommendation of the actuary.

Provision for liabilities and charges include a provision of
£3,175,000 (1994 £2,612,000) for the difference between
the amounts recognised as cost and the amounis funded
or paid directly.
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Notes to the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 1995

1995 1994 Goodwill  Knowhow Total
6. Profit before taxation £000 £000 8. Intangible fixed assets £000 £000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
is stated after charging: Cost
Depreciarion and amortisation At 1 January 1995 6,689 660 7,349
Owned assets 5,737 6,140 Additions 1,506 - 1,506
Assets held under finance leases 34 2,253 At 31 December 1995 8,195 660 8,855
Depreciation
Intangibie fixed assets 835 At 1 January 1995 1,853 548 2,401
Rental charges under operating leases Amount written off in the year 731 112 843
Ptant and machinery 1,084 At 31 December 1995 2,584 660 3,244
Other operating leases 3,581
Auditors' remuneration Net book value
Auditing 191 174 At 31 December 1995 5,611 - 3.6l
Other services 96 76 At 31 December 1994 4,836 112 4,948
7. Tax on profit on ordinary activities The cumulative amount of goodwill written off
UK corporation tax at 33% {1994 33%) relating to businesses currently in the group
Current tax 6,176 8,059 is £3,005,000 {1994 £2,274,000).
Deferred tax 42 161
Adjustment to prior years
Current tax - (221)
6,218 7,999
9. Tangible fixed assets Plant, machinery, Fixtures )
Land and buildings  and motor vehicles & fittings Totai
Freehold Short lease Owned Leased
£000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 1995 16,775 7,514 40,136 281 5,994 70,700
Additions 193 160 4,820 - 1,338 6,511
Subsidiary acquired - - 51 - 27 178
Disposals (1y (1,95 {903) (159) (265) (3,279
At 31 Decernber 1995 16,967 5,723 44,204 122 7.004 74,110
Depreciation
At | January 1995 1,868 2,596 25,936 179 2,378 32,957
Charge for the year 445 559 4,021 34 712 5,771
Subsidiary acquired - - 37 - 9 46
Disposals - {1,886) (577) (125 (208) (2,796)
At 31 December 1995 2,313 1,269 29,417 88 2,391 35,978
Net book value
At 31 December 1995 14,654 4,454 14,787 34 4,203 38,132
At 31 December 1994 14,907 4918 14,200 102 3,616 37,743
1995 1994 1995 1994
£000 £000 £000 £000
10. Investinents (Other) 200 - 12. Operating lease commitments
During the year £200,000 was invested in a privately held Annual commitment at 31 December
UK registered company. Land and buildings
expiring in 1996 - 1137
11. Capital commitments expiring 1997-2000 113 84
Contracted for but not provided in expiring after 2000 2,606 2,517
the accounts 733 1,022 2,719 3,738
Authorised by the directors but not yet Other leases
contracted for 1,015 1,435 expiring in 1996 3,317 1,035
expiring 19972000 2,641 2.570
5.958 3.605

HONEYWELL LIMITED Page 9



-~ Notes to the accounts
for the vear ended 31 December 1995

1995 1964
13. Stocks £000 £000
Raw materials 8,832 8,895
Work in progress 721 1,323
Finished goods for sale 11,478 8,840
21,031 19038
14. Debtors
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 37,899 33,302
Amounts owed by
Honeywell Inc group companies 40,851 35,542
Other debtors 1,570 1,720
Prepayments and accrued income 6,112 5,815
Advance corporation tax recoverable 3,750 3,750
Certificate of tax deposit - 1,250
Amounts recoverable on contracts 17,616 10,715
107,798 92,094
Amounts falling due in more than one year
Contract retentions 413 543
108,211 92637
15. Deferred tax asset
Unprovided deferred tax asset/ {(liability)
Tax allowances less depreciation {1,309) (1,498)
Other items 1,871 2,389
562 5§91
16. Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year
Bank Loan - 1,732
Finance lease obligations due 1996 - 17
Payments received on account 1,706 1,043
Trade creditors 24316 22,535
Amounts owed to
Honeywell Inc group companies 23,491 20955
Corporation tax 10,396 12,804
Other taxation and social security 2,998 278
(Other creditors 2,875 7,494
Accruals and deferred income 3,749 2,827
69,531 69,685
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Long term debt in respect of building - 14,542
(secured by mortgage upon property)
Long term debt (unsecured) 30,000 -
30,000 /14,542

The loan is repayable within 2 to 5 years.

TTASAARTITYVIITTT T Y TYNLTTIOTY

1995 1954
17.Provisions for liabilities and charges £000 £000
Pensions 3,175 2,612
Deferred taxation 93 51

3,268 2,663
Deferred
Pension  Taxation Total
£000 £000 £000
Balance at ! January 1993 2,612 51 2,663

Profit and loss account charge 563 42 605

Balance at 31 December 1995 3,175 93 3,268
1995 1994

18. Called up share capital £000 £000

Authorised, allotted, and fully paid

275,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 275 275

19. Movements on shareholders’ funds

At 1 January 77,443 79,774

Profit for the year after taxation 11,006 12,668

Dividends paid (15,000) (15000}

At 31 December 73,449 77443

20. Contingent liabilities

Customs and excise guarantees 2,660 2,660

Contract guarantee and other items 2,332 3,630
4,992 6,290

Since the year end judgement has been made against
a subsidiary company, Honeywell Control Systems
Limited in a claim which was outstanding at the year
end. The directors estimate that the maximum
potential liability is approximately £650,000. The
company intends to appeal against the judgement.

The directors consider there are strong grounds for the
appeal to be successful and accordingly no provision for
the potential liability has been made in the accounts.

21. Subsidiaries

Honeywell Southern Africa (Proprietary) Limited, a company
incorporated in South Africa, is wholly owned by Honeywell
Control Systems Limited. It sells and services industrial products
and systems. Details of other group companies are provided in
note 22.
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Notes to the company balance sheet
for the year ended 31 December 1995

1995 1994
¢ 22, Fixed assets - investments £000 £000
Cost and net book value
Balance at | January 28,428 28,428
- Additions 1,564 -
" Balance at 31 December 20992 284028
- All investments are in ordinary shares in
: subsidiary undertakings. The principal
subsidiary undertakings are Honeywell
. Control Systemns Limited, which designs, develops,
manufactures, sells and services environmental
control equipment for commercial and residential
buildings, and industrial products and systems,
including precision components and automation
- equipment for controls, and Honeywell Avionics
Systerns Limited which provides avionics support.
Both subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned
and registered in England and Wales. The group
has a number of small or inactive subsidiary
undertakings whose resuits are also consolidated
in these accounts.
23. Debtors 1695 1994
Amournits falling due within one vear £000 L0000
Amounts owed by subsidiary
undertakings 51,441 16,54
Amount owed by other group companies - 12,174
Other debtors 233 354
Advance corporation tax recoverable 3,750 3.750
55424 32,819
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary
undertakings 25,000 25,000
24. Creditors
. Amounts falling due within one year
. Bank Overdraft 1,902 1,732
Amounts owed to subsidiary
undertakings 44302 38497
- Corporation tax 2,474 3,541
i Other creditors 1,13 77
49,809 43,847
- Amounts falling due after more than one year
* Long term debt (unsecured) 30,000 -
Long term debt (secured on property) - 14,542

- The loan is repayable within 2 to 5 years,

TIMAIT YV WVIITTYT T T TR AT T Ty

1695 1994
25. Called up share capital £000 £000
Authorised, allotted, and fully paid
275,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 275 275
26. Profit and loss account
Balance at 1 January 26,043 26,039
(Loss)/profit for the year after dividends (1,045 4
Balance at 31 Decemnber 24998 26,043
The profit and loss account for the company has been
omitted under the exemption perrnitted by section 230
of the Companies' Act 1985, Profit for the year before
dividends paid was £13,955,000 (1994 profit £15,004,000).

1995 1994
27. Movement on shareholders’ funds £000 £000
At 1 January 31,770 31766
Retained (loss)/profit for the year

after dividends (1,045) 4

At 31 December 30,725 31,770

28. Ultimate paren{ company

The company's ultimate parent company is Honeywell Inc.,
a company incorporated in the USA. The annual report of
Honeywell Inc. is available from Honeywell House,
Arlington Business Park, Bracknell, Berkshire, RG12 1EB.
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HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995

"SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
GENERAL SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING UNDERLYING THE ACCOUNIS

The accounts have been prepared using the historical cost convention, except
for certain assets which are at valuation. The accounts have been prepared
in accordance with Schedule 5 of the Corporations Regulations, applicable
Accounting Standards and Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views, and comply
with other requirements of the law.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES WHICH HAVE BEEN SIGNIFICANT IN THE PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION OF THE ACCOUNTS

(a) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated accounts have been prepared by combining the financial
statements of all the entities that comprise the economic entity kmown as
Honeywell Holdings Pty Limited, being the holding company (the chief entity)
and its subsidiaries (controlled entities) as defined in AASB 1024 "Consolidated
Accounts.” A list of controlled entities appéars in Note 22. Consistent
accounting policies have been employed in the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated accounts.

The consolidated accounts include the information and results of each controlled
entity from the date on which the company obtained control and until sach
time as the company ceased to control such entity.

In preparing the consolidated accounts, all intercompany balances and
transactions are eliminated in full

(b) INTANGIBLES

Goodwill representing the difference between the acquisition cost and the fair
value of net assets of businesses acquired, is amortised over the period of time,
not exceeding 20 years, during which the benefits are expected to arise.

(¢ FOREIGN CURRENCY

All foreign currency transactions during the year have been brought fo account
using the exchange rate in effect at the date of the framsaction. Foreign
currency monetary items at balance date are translated at the exchange rate
existing at that date.



HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLILED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (Continued)

Exchange differences are brought to account in the profit and loss statement
of the financial period in which they arise except that:

()  exchange differences which relate to assets under construction for future
productive use are included in the cost of those assets; and

() exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge the
purchase or sale of specific goods and services are deferred and included
in the measurement of the purchase or sale.

Exchange differences relating to foreign currency monetary items forming part
of the net investment in a self:sustaining foreign operation are taken directly
to the foreign currency translation reserve.

Financial statements of self-sustaining foreign subsidiaries are translated at
balance date using the cwrent rate method and exchange differences are
brought to account by entries made directly to the foreign currency translation
reserve.

(d) DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including freehold
buildings but excluding land and investment properties. Depreciation is
calculated on a straight line basis 5o as to write off the net cost of each asset
over its expected useful life. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
period of the lease or estimated wuseful life, whichever is the shorter, using the
straight line method.

(&) RECOVERABLE AMOUNT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Non-current assets are written down to recoverable amount where the carrying
value of any non-current asset exceeds recoverable amount. In determining the
recoverable amount of non-crrent assets, the expected net cash flows have
been discounted to their present value.

@ INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (including
an appropriate portion of fixed and wvariable overbead expenses where
applicable). The cost of inventories is determined either on a weighted average
basis or by specific identification.

(@ INCOME TAX

Tax effect accounting principlies have been adopted whereby income tax
expense has been calculated on pretax accounting profits after adjustment for
permanent differences. The tax effect of timing differences, which occur when
items are included or allowed for income tax purposes in a period different to
that for accounting, is shown at current taxation rates in provision ior deferred
income tax and future income tax benefit, as applicable.

10



HONEYWELIL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (Continued)

(h) LEASED ASSETS

Leased assets classified as finance Ieasesarecapitalisedasﬁxedassets. The
amount initially brought to account is the present value of minimum lease

payments.

A finance lease is one which effectively transfers from the lessor to the lessee
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased

property.

Capitalised leased assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the

estimated useful life of the asset.

Finance lease payments are allocated between interest expense and reduction
of lease liability over the term of the lease. The interest expense is
determined by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease to the

outstanding lease lability at the beginning of each lease payment period

Operating lease payments are charged as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

(1) CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Changes in accounting policy have been effected as a result of the application
of applicable accounting standard AASB 1028 "Accounting for Employee
Entitlements". In accordance with the transitional provisions of the standard,
opening retained profits have been adjusted for the net amount of the following

adjustments to assets and liabilities as at 1 January 1895.

Provision for employee entitlements 1,420
Future income tax benefit

b



HONEYWELI, HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND IS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (Continued)

(i) EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and
salaries, annual leave, long service leave, and sick leave when it is probable
that settlement will be required and are capable of being measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave, and
other employee entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months, are
measured at their nominal values.

Provisions made in respect of other employee entitlements which are not
expected to be settled within 12 months are measured as the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the economic entity in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
1995 1994 1995 1994
$000 $000 $000 $000
OPERATING PROFIT
The operating profit before income tax includes
the following items of revenue and expense:
Revenues
Sales revenue 271,986 251,174 -
Dividends received : :
- wholly owned controlled entities - - 33,550
Other operating revenue
Interest received/receivable:
- other persons 488 308 . -
Proceeds on sale of property,
plant and equipment - 266 -
Other 5 657 - -
Total operating revenue 272,549 252,395 33,550 -

12



HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
1995 1994 1995 1994
$000 §000 $'000 $000
2. OPERATING PROFIT (CONTINUED)
Expenses
Interest paid/payable:
- other persons 214 327 - -
- related bodies corporate 1,497 - - -
Bad and doubtful debis:
- bad debts written off 1,368 820 -
- provision for doubtful debts 1,222 987 -
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 5,922 5,869 -
Amortisation of leased assets 2 4 -
Amortisation of capitalised spares 1,302 1,105 -
Amortisation of other assets 2,172 1,980 -
Loss on sale of property,
plant and equipment 13 547 - -
Transfers to provisions:
- long service leave 1,717 656
- annual leave 2,115 955.
Net (gainyloss on foreign exchange 325 251 - -
Amortisation of goodwill - 434 -
Remuneration of auditors of holding company:
- auditing the accounts 107 95 -
other services 10 15 -
Remuneration of auditors of controlled entities:
- auditing the accounts 25 30 -

- 13



HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY_ LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

CONSOLIDATEDR COMPANY
1995 1994 1995 1994
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000

3. ABNORMAL ITEMS

Abnormal Egpenses
Anticipated legal settlement . (4,600) . .
Income tax benefit - 1518 - -

- (3.082) : -

Adjustment to Income Tax Expense
Future income tax benefit no
longer required
Income tax overprovided in prior years - 5,300

S
o

Abnormal Ttems Net of Income Tax 2112 2218

4. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The directors of Honeywell Holdings Pty Limited
during the year were:

J H Wolfraad
P F Myles

Aggregate income received or due and

receivable by the directors from Honeywell

Holdings Pty Limited, its controlled entities

and related corporations. 1328 607 1117 391

The number of directors of the holding company
whose total income falls within the following
bands commencing at $0 is as follows:

$150,000 - $159,999
$190,000 - $199,999
$230,000 - $239,999
$920,000 - $930,000

Lo

Prescribed benefits given by the company and any
associate to a prescribed superannuation fund or
otherwise in connection with the retirement from
a prescribed office:

Directors of the company

]
1
[
.
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5.

HONEYWELIL HOLDINGS PTY IIMITED

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX

(@) The prima fade income tax

®)

expense on pretax accounting
income reconciles to the
income tax expensefbenefit) in
the accounts as follows:

Operating profit

Income tax expense (benefit)
calculated at 36% (1994: 33%)

of operating profit

Tax effect of permanent
differences

Amortisation of goodwill
Non-deductible expenses

Fringe benefits tax

Research and development
expenditure

Research and development
expenditure related to prior years
Other items

Abnormal Items:
Future income tax benefit no
longer required
Tax overprovided in prior years
Effect on future income tax benefit
and provision for deferred income tax
due to the change in rate of income
tax from 33% to 36%

Prior years overprovision

Incorne tax expense/(benefit)
attributable to operating profit

Income tax expensedbenefit) comprises:
Current income tax payable

Provision for deferred income tax
Future income tax benefit

15

__CONSOLIDATED __ CoMPANY

1995 1994 1995 1994
$°000 $000 $'000 $000
10311 5.992 ; :
3,712 1,977 - .

- 143 ;

294 710 -

. 81 .
(198) (165) . ;
©77) - -
(18) 45 .
2,813 2791 ; ;

2,112 . ;
. (5,300) ] ]
(120) . . }
4,805 (2,509) -
(303) . .
4502 (2.509) -
(582) 118) ; -
2,123 235 ; ]
2.961 (2.626) - -
4,502 (2.509) . ]




HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 1995 (CONTINUED)

CASH

Cash
Short term deposits

CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Trade debtors
less: provision for doubtful debts

Amounts receivable from controlled
entities

Amounts receivable from other
related companies

Qther debtors and prepayments

CURRENT INVENTORIES
- At cost
Raw materials and stores

Work in progress
Finished goods

NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Trade debtors

16

422 379

CONSOLIDATED CoMPANY

1995 1994 1995 1994
$'000 “$'000 $000 $'000
1,263 2,345 -
19.908 10,615 - -
21,171 Jdeee0 -
55,210 48783 .
(774) (816) -

54,436 47,867
- 30,788 30,788

2,857 1,761
15,300 10.210 -
72,5693 59838 30.788 30,788

776 586
2,692 3,551 -
17.609 13.708 - -
213077 17,845 - -

“1



HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1L

Land - at cost

Buildings - at cost
less:  accumulated depreciation

Equipment, machinery and
leaschold improvements
at cost

less: accumulated depreciation

- plant and equipment under finance lease
less: accumutlated amortisation

Total plant and equipment

Total property, plant and equipment
The directors’ estimate of the current
value of interests in land and buildings
based upon the most recent valuations
(31 December 1993)

INTANGIBLES

Goodwill - at cost
Accumulated amortisation

17

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
1995 1994 1995 1994
$000 $000 $000 $000
60 60 - — -
1,794 1,794 .
(249) (220) - -
1,545 1,574 :
52,153 48,269 -
(31.904) (26.208) . :
20,249 22,041
21 42 . )
9 24) - - -
12 18 -
20,261 22,059 -
21,866 23.693 . -
1,691 1,691 : -
2,168 2,168 )
(2.168) 2,168) -

1



12. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

13.

14.

15.

16,

HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

Future income tax benefits
attributable to:

Timing differences
Other

CURRENT CREDITORS AND BORROWINGS

Unsecured:
Trade creditors
Related companies
- Other
Amounts payable to related
bodies corporate

CURRENT PROVISIONS
Taxation

Fmployee entitlements (Note 17)
- long service leave

- annual leave

‘Warranty

Anticipated legal settlement

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other accruals
Unearned revenue

NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

Provision for deferred income tax

18

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
1995 1994 1995 1994
$'000 $000 $°000 $'000
3,958 6.515 -
3,958 6,515 - -
3.958 8515 — -
7,662 5,181
33,365 27,137 -
43492 c
84,519 32,318 - -
408 3,755
3,988 2,943 " .
4,514 3,967 . .
291 332 - -
. 4,600 - =
9.201 15,597 - -
1,672 1,655 - -
2,845 2,805 - -
4517 4,360 - -
4,521 2,256 - -



7.

18.

19.

HONEYWELIL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

The aggregate employee entitlement
liability recognised and included

in the accounts is as follows:
Provision for employee entitlements
- Current (Note 14)
SHARE CAPITAL
(@) Authorised capital
750,000 ordinary shares
of $2.00 each
(b) JIssued capital
795,000 ordinary shaves of
$2.00 each fully paid
RESERVES

Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve

Balance at beginning of finandal year

Surplus from translation of financial
statements of foreign operations

Balance at end of financial year

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
1995 1994 1995 1994
$000 $000 $'000 $000
8,502 6.910 . :
1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500
1,450 1,450 1,450 1.450
515 478 -
380 37 -
895 515 : :
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HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
1995 1994 1995 194
$'000 $'000 $000 $000
20, COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
(a) Capital expenditure commitments:
Plant and equipment
Not later than one year 1,614 1.313 - -
(b) Operating leases
The economic entity has lease
commitments In respect of non-
cancellable operating leases for
plant and premises due for payment
in ensuing years as folows:
Not later than one year 8,293 8,611 -
Later than one year but not
later than two years 6,778 7297 -
Later than two years but not
later than five years 10,396 10,810 - -
Later than five years 13,566 14,280 - -
39.033 40928 - - - -
21. CONTINGENT IIABILITIES
(a) Related entities
The company has entered into a deed
of crossguarantee with certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries. The names
of these wholly-owned subsidiaries
are detailed in Note 22 and the total
liabilities of these wholly-owned
subsidiaries (excluding amounts owed
to the company itself) are: 97,151 50,405 97,151 50,405
() Other persons
Guarantee provided in respect of
contractor payments received 25744 20,221 - -
122,895 70,626 97151 50,405

290



HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)
22. INVESTMENT IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NAME OF CORPORATION

CHIEF ENTITY
HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTy 11D

Controlled Entities

Honeywell Limited (1)
Blendair Pty Limited (1)

* Honeywell Holdings Limited

* Honeywell (Wholesale) Limited
* Honeywell Limited

Less: Investments held by controiled entities

PLACE OF
INCORPORATION  SHARE

NSW

NSW

NSwW
NZ
NZ
NZ

CLASS OF

ORD %5

ORD $2
ORD $1
ORD $1
ORD 31

%
OWNED

1995 1994
3 $

100% 100%

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

*  Audited by an associated firm of the holding company auditors.

BOOK VALUE
OF INVESTMENT

1995 1994

5 5

923,000 23,000
7217,037 7,217,037
76 76
698,708 _ 698,708

7,038,826 7,938,326
(698,784) _(698,784)
7.240042 7,240,042

(1) These wholly-owned controlled entities have entered into a deed of cross guarantee with
Honeywell Holdings Pty Limited pursuant to Australian Securities Commission Class Order
95/1530 and are relieved from the requirement to prepare audited accounts. These entitites, who
are parties to the deed of cross guarantee, have aggregate assets of $135,058,000, aggregate
liabilities of $97,151,000 and aggregate profit after income tax of $4,920,000.

Companies incorporated overseas carry on business in the country of incorporation.

Investments in the controlled entities incorporated in Australia are at officers’ valuation 1 July 1975
and were valued by officers of the company having regard to the underlying net assets of the
controlled entities. The valuation was not made in accordance with a policy of regular revaluation
of investments in controlled entities. Investments in the controlled entities incorporated in New
Zealand are at cost after adjustment for a dividend paid from pre-acquisition earnings.

23. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The company is involved in the manufacture, sales and service of automation equipment in Australia,

New Zealand and Fiji.

Revenue
1996 1995
$000 §'000
Australia 249913 235,506
New Zealand 22636 _16:889
252,39

Total 272,549

21

Results
1996 1995
$000 $°000
5371 7,654
438 847
5809 8501

Assets
1996 1995
$000 000
120387 112332
_1x700 8799
41087 RO



HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 1995 (CONTINUED)

24. CONTRIBUTION TO GROUP PROFIT

The contribution by each company in the economic entity to the comsolidated net profit, after
consolidation adjustments and income tax was:

1995 1994
$'000 $000
Honeywell Holdings Pty Limited
Honeywell Limited (Australian company) 5,677 7,739
Blendair Pty Limited . {(308) (85)
Honeywell Holdings Limited - -
Honeywell (Wholesale) Limited
Honeywell Limited (New Zealand company) 438 847
5809 8.501
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
1995 31994 1995 1994
$000 F000 $000 $000
25. NON-HEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY BALANCES
The Australian dollar
equivalent of non-hedged
foreign currency balances are
included in the accounts
as follows:
UNITED STATES DOLLARS:
Cash
- Current 956 1,329 -
Receivables
- Current 278 678 -

Creditors and borrowings
- Current

’

2,345

|
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26.

29,

 HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

SUPERANNUATION COMMITMENTS

All employees of the company are entitled to lump sum benefits from the economic entity’s retirement
plan.  The retirement plan provides defined benefits calculated on years of service commencing from
the employee’s date of joining the plan and in accordance with Australian taxation guidelines.

Members contribute at a rate of 3% of their wages and salaries. The company’s contribution varies
and is dependent on the financial status of the plan as advised by the plan’s actuaries.

The last actuarial assessment was performed by Tim Boden, BSc, FIA of the AMP Society (fund
manager) on 31 December 1995.

The actuarial assessment indicated that sufficient funds were available to meet all benefits that would
have been vested under the plan in the event of termination of the plan and voluntary or compulsory
termination of each employee in the economic emntity.

Accrued Benefits, Vested Benefits and Net Market Value of Plan Assets

5000
Accrued Benefits (31/12/85) 37,339
Net market value of assets (31/12/95) 53,296
Difference $15,957

The difference between the accrued benefits and net market value of plan assets have not been
recognised in the accounts of the company. Contributions to the plan, amounting to $1,616,000, are
expressed as incurred.

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The economic entity’s sales of control equipment depended, throughout the financial year covered by
these accounts, on the supply of equipment and components from related corporations.
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HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The parent entity is Honeywell Inc. 2 company incorporated in the United States of America.

Ownership interests held in controlled entities are disclosed in Note 22. Balances with controlled
entities and other related parties are disclosed in notes 7 and 13.

The name of the persons who were Directors of the company during the course of the year are as
set out in Note 4.

Transactions involving entities subject to common controk

Class of
Type of Related Party 1995* 1994
Transaction 1995 1994 $000 $000
Purchase of Normal Normal Entities $42,424 $32,901
equipment commercial comrnercial subject to
and terms and terms and COImMOon
components conditions conditions control

Includes purchases of equipment and components from:

1995 1994

$000 $000
Honeywell Inc (USA) $31,419 Honeywell Inc (USA) $25,889
Honeywell AG (Germany) $1,743 Honeywell 4.G. (Germany) $1,047
Honeywell Ltd (UKD 3877 Honeywell Ltd (UK} 3638
Honeywell Emmen (Netherlands) $1,247 Honeywell Emmen (Netherlands) $498
Honeywell Ltd (Canada) $975 Honeywell Ltd (Canads) $466



HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTYLIMITED

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

29. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

@

(b)

Reconciliation of Cash

For the purposes of the statement of
cash flows, cash includes cash on hand
and in banks and investments in money
market instruments, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of
the financial year as shown in the .
statement of cash flows is reconciled

to the related items in the balance
sheet as follows:

Cash at beginning of the year

Cash
Deposits at call

Cash at the end of the year

Cash
Deposits at call

Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by
Operating Activities to Operating Profit
after Income Tax

Operating profit after taxation

Loss on disposal of non-current assets

Depreciation and amortisation of
non-current assets

Increase in deferred tax payable

(Decrease) in provision for tax

Reclassification of PSD lines

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
1985 1994 1995 1994
$'000 $000 $'000 $000
2,345 529 -
10,615 3.370 -
12,960 3,899 - -
1,263 2,345 _
19,908 10.615
2L171 12960 :
5809 8,501 33,550 -
13 547 - .
7,224 7,411 -
2,265 127 : .
(3,347 2,273) - .
3,337 2,881 - -



HONEYWELL HOLDINGS PTYLIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995 (CONTINUED)

29. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

©

Movement in FCTR
{(IncreaseyDecrease in:
Cuwrrent receivables
Inventories
Non-current receivables
FITB
Increase/{Decrease) in:
Trade Creditors
Current provisions
Other current Liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
Financing facilities

The economic entity had the following
facilities at 31 December :

Overdraft facility
Money market line

These facilities are subject to annual review

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
1995 1994 1995 1994
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
380 37
(12,755) (10,726) .
(4,534) 7,450 -
(143) (38) -
3,068 (2,618) -
8,709 631
(4,469) 5,377 -
157 664 s
5714 17.973 33.550 "
Facility Drawn Unused
$'000 $°000 $'000
2,000 - 2,000
30,000 - 30,000
32,000 - _92:000
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APPENDIX D

The "Ms. Investor” example given in the introduction, referring to differences in
disclosure requirements, illustrates the situation that exists in actual disclosed contingency
information for Honeywell Inc., Honeywell Limited and Honeywell Holdings. Honeywell Inc.
(U.S.) has in-depth contingency disclosure information that covers more than a half of a page,
including extensive information on two different contingency matters. The contingency
information from Honeywell Limited (U.K.) covers only one fourth this area, and gives no
specifics surrounding the judgement mentioned. Honeywell Holdings (Australia) has a
contingency footnote that covers almost one page, including number tables. However, this
contingency footnote is entirely composed of information that relates to transactions with other
wholly-owned Honeywell subsidiaries, and gives no information that pertains to outside
contingencies such as pending lawsuits, judgements, or court appeals. Although this vast
difference in information disclosed may be due to the fact that the United Kingdom and
Australian Honeywell companies do not have as many probable and reasonably estimatable
contingencies, it is unknown with certainty. Much of the information given by Honeywell Inc.
(U.S.) is information that gives background knowledge about the contingency situation, which
although is strictly voluntary, is very helpful in informing a prospective investor more fully about

the company.
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